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Item 2.01. Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.
Item 3.02. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities.

Closing of California Stem Cell Acquisition

On May 8, 2014 (the “Closing”), NeoStem, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“NeoStem” or the “Company”) closed its acquisition (the “CSC Acquisition”) of California Stem Cell, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (“CSC”), pursuant to the terms of the previously-announced Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 11, 2014 (the “Merger Agreement”), by and among NeoStem,
CSC, NBS Acquisition Sub I, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of NeoStem (“Subco”), NBS Acquisition Sub II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of NeoStem (“Subco II”), and Jason Livingston, solely in his capacity as CSC stockholder representative (together with his permitted successors, the “CSC
Representative”). At Closing, Fortis Advisors LLC succeeded to the duties of the CSC Representative pursuant to the Merger Agreement.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on the Closing Date, (1) Subco was merged with and into CSC (the “First Merger”) and (2) CSC was then merged with and into Subco II (the “Second
Merger”, and collectively with the First Merger, the “Mergers”), with Subco II surviving the Mergers as a wholly-owned subsidiary of NeoStem. At Closing, Subco II changed its legal name to
NeoStem Oncology, LLC. In this Current Report on Form 8-K, we sometimes use the terms “CSC”, “NeoStem Oncology, LLC” or “Surviving Company” to refer to the wholly-owned subsidiary
of NeoStem which is the survivor of the Mergers.

CSC (which after the Mergers is known as NeoStem Oncology, LLC) is a biopharmaceutical company with deep expertise in stem cell biology that is engaged in the development of
therapies using a patient’s own, i.e., autologous, cells. To date, CSC’s development efforts have been directed at immunotherapies for cancer, regenerative medicine for motor neuron replacement
and dermatology. CSC’s most advanced program is an immunotherapy, Melapuldencel-T, which uses patients’ own tumor cells to maximize the ability of their immune system to identify and
eliminate the cancer initiating (stem) cells that are capable of reconstituting or developing new tumors (i.e., “replicating cells”). The focus of that program is the treatment of metastatic melanoma.
As a result of encouraging Phase 2 data, CSC expects to initiate a Phase 3 clinical trial later in 2014, for which it has received Special Protocol Assessment (“SPA”) and Fast Track designation, as
well as Orphan Drug designation. CSC maintains corporate offices and research facilities in Irvine, California. Further information with respect to CSC’s business and the risk factors associated
therewith appears below under the respective captions “Business of CSC” and “Risk Factors.”

Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Current Report on Form 8-K shall have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in the Merger Agreement.

Aggregate Merger Consideration

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, all shares of CSC common stock (“CSC Common Stock”) and CSC preferred stock (“CSC Preferred Stock”, and collectively with the CSC
Common Stock, the “CSC Capital Stock”) outstanding immediately prior to the Closing, were canceled and converted into the right to receive, in the aggregate (and giving effect to the
liquidation preferences accorded to the CSC Preferred Stock):

(1) An aggregate of 5,329,593 shares of NeoStem common stock (subject to payment of nominal cash in lieu of fractional shares) (the “Closing Merger Consideration”).

(2) If payable after the Closing, certain milestone payments in an amount of up to $90 million in the aggregate, payable in shares of NeoStem common stock or cash, in NeoStem’s
sole discretion, in the event of the successful completion of certain milestone events in connection with the CSC business acquired by NeoStem (the “Milestone Payments”, and
together with the Closing Merger Consideration, the “Merger Consideration”). The Milestone Payments that may become payable after Closing (including the relevant payment
procedures) are described in greater particularity in NeoStem’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 14, 2014 under the caption “Aggregate Merger Consideration -
Milestone Payments,” which discussion is incorporated by reference herein.

The merger consideration as provided in the Merger Agreement was negotiated at arms’ length between the parties.

Payment of Closing Merger Consideration

In accordance with the Merger Agreement, at the Closing and following payment by NeoStem of CSC's current transaction expenses in an aggregate amount of $1.8 million, NeoStem
issued (or shall issue, following compliance with letter of transmittal procedures, as applicable) the shares of NeoStem common stock constituting the Closing Merger Consideration, subject to
payment
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of nominal cash in lieu of fractional shares, as follows (and giving effect to the liquidation preferences accorded to the CSC Preferred Stock):

(1) 3,744,740 shares of NeoStem restricted common stock shall be distributed to the former holders of CSC Common Stock and CSC Preferred Stock (collectively, the “CSC
Securityholders”), following compliance with letter of transmittal procedures.

(2) 1,332,399 shares of NeoStem restricted common stock (the “Escrow Amount”) were deposited with the escrow agent, who is initially NeoStem’s transfer agent (the “Escrow
Agent”), to be held on behalf of the former CSC Securityholders for a period of 15 months.

(3) 252,454 shares of NeoStem restricted common stock (the “CSC Expenses Escrow Amount”) were deposited with the Escrow Agent, to be held on behalf of the former CSC
Securityholders for a period of 12 months.

Escrow Agreement

In accordance with the Merger Agreement, NeoStem has deposited the shares of NeoStem common stock constituting the Escrow Amount and the CSC Expenses Escrow Amount with the
Escrow Agent for eventual distribution to the former CSC Securityholders (subject to adjustment following the Closing in connection with any indemnification claims, all in accordance with the
Merger Agreement). Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement entered into at Closing by and among NeoStem, CSC, the CSC Representative and the Escrow Agent (the “Escrow Agreement”), the
escrow of the Escrow Amount and the CSC Expenses Escrow Amount will continue from Closing until the 15-month anniversary of the Closing and the 12-month anniversary of the Closing,
respectively. The amount of shares ultimately released from escrow to the former CSC Securityholders may (i) in the case of the Escrow Amount, be less than the full Escrow Amount to the
extent any portion thereof is required to be applied to cover indemnification claims and (ii) in the case of the CSC Expenses Escrow Amount, be less than the full CSC Expenses Escrow Amount
in the event that 50% of the amount of certain offsetting funds received by CSC in the 12 months after Closing from the license of CSC technology, pursuant to grant programs on account of CSC
technology or pursuant to donations related to any of CSC’s clinical programs (“CSC Expenses Offset Payments”) does not equal at least $1.8 million, in each case in accordance with the terms of
the Merger Agreement. The terms of the escrow arrangements covering the escrowed portions of the Closing Merger Consideration are described in greater particularity in NeoStem’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 14, 2014 under the caption “Aggregate Merger Consideration - Escrow Agreement,” which discussion is incorporated herein by reference. The foregoing
description of the Escrow Agreement does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Escrow Agreement, which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to this
Current Report on Form 8-K.

Private Placement; Transfer Restrictions

The offer and sale of the shares of NeoStem common stock to be issued pursuant to the Merger Agreement (including the Closing Merger Consideration and any Milestone Payments made
in shares) have been made in a private placement in reliance upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), for
transactions by an issuer not involving a public offering, and/or Regulation D under the Securities Act. All certificates evidencing shares of NeoStem common stock issuable in connection with
the transactions will bear a standard restrictive legend under the Securities Act. Any portions of the Closing Merger Consideration not deposited into escrow at Closing (the “Closing Share
Consideration”) may not be transferred, directly or indirectly, without the consent of NeoStem until the first anniversary of the Closing; provided that following the six-month anniversary of the
Closing, this restriction shall lapse with respect to 1,872,370 of the Closing Share Consideration.

The foregoing description of the Merger Agreement does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Merger Agreement, which is filed as Exhibit 2.1
hereto, and is incorporated herein by reference. The provisions of the Merger Agreement, including the representations and warranties contained therein, are not for the benefit of any party other
than the parties to such agreement and are not intended as a document for investors and the public to obtain factual information about the current state of affairs of the parties to that document.
Rather, investors and the public should look to other disclosures contained in NeoStem’s filings with the SEC.

BUSINESS OF CSC

Overview

CSC (the entity formerly known as “California Stem Cell, Inc.” which is now NeoStem’s wholly-owned “NeoStem Oncology, LLC” subsidiary) is a biopharmaceutical company with
deep expertise in stem cell biology that is engaged in the
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development of therapies using a patient’s own, i.e., autologous, cells. To date, CSC’s development efforts have been directed at immunotherapies for cancer, regenerative medicine for motor
neuron replacement and dermatology. CSC’s most advanced program is an immunotherapy which uses patients’ own tumor cells to maximize the ability of their immune system to identify and
eliminate the cancer initiating (stem) cells that are capable of reconstituting or developing new tumors, i.e., “replicating cells”. The focus of that program is for the treatment of metastatic
melanoma. As a result of encouraging Phase 2 data, we expect to initiate a Phase 3 clinical trial later in 2014 for which Special Protocol Assessment (“SPA”), Fast Track designation, and Orphan
Drug designation have been received.

The proprietary science and technology of CSC was developed by internationally recognized cancer expert, Dr. Robert Dillman, formerly Chief Medical Officer of CSC and now VP,
Oncology at NeoStem. Dr. Dillman has directed a research laboratory focused on patient-specific cell therapies for more than 20 years and is an internationally recognized leader in cancer
immunotherapy approaches, including monoclonal antibodies, adoptive cell therapies, IL-2, and cancer vaccines. He chaired the Cancer Biotherapy Research Group from 1990-99, and is a past
President of the Society for Immunotherapy of Cancer (SITC). Dr. Dillman has served as the Executive Medical Director of the Hoag Hospital Institute for Research and Education and as a
Clinical Professor of Medicine at the University of California, Irvine.

Overview of Cancer Immunotherapy

The immune system deals with cells and organisms that express foreign antigens by a process of antigen presentation to T cells then communication with B cells. This is followed by the
production of cytotoxic T cells that can recognize antigens, and the production by differentiated B cells of antibodies that target those antigens. The system also has a memory process so that if an
antigen is seen again, the immune response is mobilized even faster. T cells are capable of killing tumor cells. However, there are feedback mechanisms in many diseases, particularly cancer, that
can turn off and/or repress the processes of antigen recognition and immune response.

Some experts have suggested that within 10 years, 60% of cancers will be treated with immunotherapy (Nature, Vol. 508, 3 April 2014). Immune responses can be induced and/or
enhanced by vaccination using a single or handful of well-characterized tumor antigens. Injections of exogenously expanded cytotoxic T cells that recognize a single antigen on a patient’s cancer
have been shown to eliminate metastatic disease in a subset of patients. However, cancers do not express a single antigen. Further, it is now known that most of these mutations are unique to that
patient’s cancer; so it is not surprising that approaches that have involved immunization with only one or a few antigens, or injections of someone else’s cultured tumor cells have not been
successful.

We believe that a better approach would involve a broader array of antigens and would utilize the patient’s own tumor, also known as autologous tumor. A number of those methods that
have been tried have sought to draw antigens from an entire tumor mass. However, the cells of interest are the cancer stem cells or replicating cells, those with indefinite multiplicative capability.
Only a few of those cells are present in the tumor mass, perhaps as few as 1/100,000 cells have this potential. Moreover, the tumor mass by definition includes a variety of other cells, such as
immune cells, blood cells and other cells, some or many of which may inhibit or otherwise interfere with antigen recognition.

CSC’s approach is different in two fundamental ways from other autologous therapies: (i) it presents to the patient’s immune system the entire spectrum of antigens from that patient’s
own tumor and (ii) it separates out and re-administers just those cells from the patient’s tumor that are self-renewing, that is, those that can regenerate the cancer and cause metastatic spread
against which an immune response is most needed. Those cells are pretreated with radiation and are incubated with dendritic cells to optimize presentation of the tumor initiating cell antigens to
the T cells.

Basic and clinical research have established that in some patients there is the ability to recognize tumor antigens, but as a result of their disease there are mechanisms that interfere with
this process, while other patients have an existing immune recognition of tumor antigens, but their immune response is being suppressed. This is the basis for the new monoclonal antibody
therapies such as anti-CTLA4, anti-PD-1, and anti-PD-L1 that are providing clinical benefit in the setting of metastatic melanoma. These so-called “checkpoint” inhibitors, i.e., drugs that block
checkpoint proteins, work by either stimulating an existing immune response to tumor antigens, or liberating a repressed immune response to tumor antigens. However, their mechanisms of action
rely on pre-existing recognition of tumor antigens by the immune system. CSC’s approach is different in that it is designed to induce or enhance recognition of all the tumor antigens expressed on
the tumor’s self-renewing cells. In other words, the therapy’s intent is to increase the “target” specifically, its self-renewing stem cells.

All immunotherapy products developed using this platform will require approval of a Biologics License Application (“BLA”) prior to being marketed.

Melapuldencel-T for Malignant Melanoma
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Melapuldencel-T is an autologous initiating (stem) cell immune based therapy intended to eliminate the tumor cells capable of causing disease recurrence and is initially directed at
patients with metastatic melanoma. CSC’s immunotherapeutic approach uses the patient’s isolated and purified tumor stem cells to train the immune system (Killer T-cells, CD8+) to identify and
eliminate cancer stem cells, the root cause of tumor formation and the key drivers of tumor escape, tumor genesis, self-renewal and recurrence of cancer. We believe this platform technology is
applicable for a broad spectrum of solid tumor cancers.

In a Phase 2 randomized clinical trial of subcutaneously injected Melapuldencel-T conducted by Dr. Dillman, Melapuldencel-T improved two year overall survival in patients with
advanced melanoma (recurrent Stage III or Stage IV) to 72% compared to 31% for control patients treated with only their own tumor cells suspended in granulocyte macrophage colony-
stimulating factor (GM-CSF) (p=0.007). The toxicity profile was favorable with no grade IV and only one grade III (allergic reaction) event in the study. The allergic reaction was attributed to the
granulocyte macrophage colony-stimulating factor (GM-CSF), an FDA-approved immune stimulant used in the final drug formulation. There were no other significant toxicities seen in either an
earlier single-arm Phase 2 trial or this randomized Phase 2 trial. Local injection site reactions, such as skin irritation and itching, did occur, but the symptoms dissipated within hours after the
injection. There were no significant adverse effects on hematopoietic cells or renal function, liver function, or patient performance status.

Melapuldencel-T is intended to be given after surgery, radiation, chemotherapy, targeted therapies, or other immunotherapies that decrease the total cancer volume, but do not eliminate
the cancer initiating (stem) cells or progenitor cells. The treatment can also be given prior to other treatments. The process starts with the collection from a patient of tumor from a site of
metastatic disease, which is then transported to CSC’s cell biology laboratory. From this tumor specimen, a tumor cell line is established whose cells have the features of cancer “stem cells” or
“progenitor” cells. Over the course of a few weeks, these cells are treated with radiation therapy and frozen in a process called cryopreservation. The patient then undergoes a procedure called
leukopheresis through which peripheral blood mononuclear cells are collected. These cells are cultured in the laboratory to derive antigen-presenting cells, otherwise called dendritic cells. The
dendritic cells and tumor cells are incubated together during which the tumor cells are internalized by the dendritic cells. The product is then administered by subcutaneous injection over an
approximately six-month period in combination with GM-CSF. The dendritic cells present the tumor cell antigens to the T lymphocytes of the patient’s immune system which results in the
expansion of immune cells that can recognize and destroy tumor cells as well as production of antibodies against the tumor antigens.

The therapy is described as an irradiated autologous in vitro proliferating melanoma cell line loaded onto an autologous dendritic cell combined with GM-CSF. Unlike approved and
many experimental dendritic cell therapies which are simply a means of presenting to the patient’s immune system the broad array of antigens associated with the cancer stem cells, the CSC
therapy is designed to specifically expose the immune targets of the cancer initiating (stem) cells that make cancer lethal. This focuses the immune attack on the specific elements of the tumor that
enable it to grow and metastasize, which is not the case with currently available approaches. Further, in CSC’s randomized Phase 2 trial survival was better in patients whose immune system was
exposed to antigens presented by the exogenously expanded dendritic cells, rather than just by injecting the irradiated cancer cells themselves.

CSC has obtained FDA agreement on the Melapuldencel-T Phase 3 clinical trial for metastatic melanoma through a Special Protocol Assessment (SPA) and has received Fast Track
designation, as well as Orphan Drug designation. The protocol calls for enrolling 250 patients (with potential overenrollment by approximately 10%) and is expected to cost approximately $25
million. The study is a randomized, double-blind placebo-controlled trial in patients with stage IV disease and recurrent stage III disease. Patients may be enrolled regardless of prior therapy, they
are not restricted in terms of therapy at the time they would be receiving Melapuldencel-T and there is no subsequent restriction after they have completed that therapy. The key entry criterion is
that the patient must have had a tumor resected from which a stem cell has been able to establish the self-renewing cell line. The study is expected to be initiated later in 2014.

Other Development Activities

CSC’s immunotherapeutic approach is a platform technology that CSC believes could be expanded into other indications, such as hepatocellular carcinoma and other immune responsive
tumor types. CSC’s preclinical regenerative medicine program utilizes proprietary stem cell-derived cell lines as cell replacement therapies for potential use in neuromuscular diseases (“ALS”).
Its dermatology program consists of proprietary stem cell-derived serum applicable for skin health and maintenance. CSC’s product candidate works by inducing the proliferation of keratinocytes,
cells that play an integral role in maintaining the structural integrity of the epidermis. The CSC formulation provides skin growth factors that stimulate skin stem cells to renew, giving rise to new
skin cell progenitors.

Manufacturing Capabilities
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Since its founding in 2005, CSC has developed processes for the scalable production of high-purity human stem cells and their derivatives which present the unique opportunity to
develop cost effective DC-TC (tumor-loaded dendritic cell) therapeutics. CSC’s development programs are supported by manufacturing processes, test methods and proprietary media that enable
controlled, current Good Manufacturing Practice (“cGMP”)-compliant production of critical, high-purity cell product. CSC employs 31 people and has its own manufacturing facility at its Irvine,
CA headquarters.

CSC produces cancer initiating (stem) cell lines with purities above 90% using its proprietary media that enables rapid generation and high yields versus competing technologies. Cancer
initiating (stem) cells from different tumors are each unique and have diverse properties that impact how they differentiate into clinically useful cell types (purity) and to what extent they
proliferate (yield). This proprietary process of manufacturing cancer initiating (stem) cells and differentiated cell products is protected through a combination of patents, know how, and a division
of labor amongst CSC’s employees.

Corporate Information

Prior to the Mergers, CSC was a privately-held Delaware corporation. CSC maintains offices at 18301 Von Karman Ave., Suite 130, Irvine, California 92612 and its telephone number is
(949) 725-1750. CSC maintains a website at www.californiastemcell.com. The contents of CSC’s website are not incorporated by reference into this Current Report on Form 8-K and will not be
deemed a part hereof.

You are urged to read the historical financial statements of CSC, together with the pro forma financial statements of the combined company giving effect to the Mergers, included in this
Current Report on Form 8-K.

INTERESTS OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN THE MERGERS

Employment Arrangements

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, CSC entered into a three-year employment agreement with Hans S. Keirstead, Ph.D. (CSC’s President and CEO prior to the
Mergers), pursuant to which Dr. Keirstead has agreed to continue to serve as CSC’s President effective upon and following the Closing. The employment agreement provides for (i) base salary of
$285,000, (ii) eligibility for bonus or incentive compensation of up to 30% of base salary, (iii) discretionary equity awards, (iv) reimbursement of certain expenses and (v) participation in
employee benefit plans and programs. In the event that Dr. Keirstead’s employment is terminated without cause (as defined in the employment agreement), the employment agreement provides
that Dr. Keirstead would be entitled to three months’ base salary plus any accrued amounts owing him through the termination date. Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, Dr.
Keirstead also entered into a Restrictive Covenants Agreement with NeoStem and CSC, pursuant to which, among other things, Dr. Keirstead agreed to certain transfer restrictions with respect to
the securities of CSC owned by him and the shares of NeoStem common stock to be received by him as his portion of the Closing Merger Consideration, as well as certain non-competition and
non-solicitation covenants.

Robert Dillman, M.D. (CSC’s Chief Medical Officer prior to the Mergers) entered into an offer letter of employment with NeoStem on May 5, 2014, whereby Dr. Dillman has been
appointed NeoStem’s VP, Oncology effective as of the Closing, with Dr. Dillman also continuing to serve as Chief Medical Officer of CSC. The offer letter of employment provides for a base
salary of $325,000.

Prior to Closing, Dr. Keirstead beneficially owned 4,081,876 shares of CSC Common Stock, which entitled him to receive at Closing 746,938 shares of NeoStem common stock,
representing approximately 14.0% of the Closing Merger Consideration (including shares deposited into escrow at Closing). Prior to Closing, Dr. Dillman beneficially owned 54,666 shares of
CSC Common Stock, which entitled him to receive at Closing 10,002 shares of NeoStem common stock, representing approximately 0.2% of the Closing Merger Consideration (including shares
deposited into escrow at Closing). On the Closing Date, Dr. Keirstead and Dr. Dillman each was granted an option to purchase 45,000 shares of NeoStem common stock at an exercise price equal
to the closing price of the NeoStem common stock on the date of grant, which options are scheduled to vest in three equal installments on each of the first, second and third one-year anniversaries
of the grant date, subject to the optionee’s continued employment.

Certain biographical information regarding each of Dr. Keirstead and Dr. Dillman is set forth below:

Hans S. Keirstead, Ph.D. Dr. Keirstead, age 46, served served as President and CEO of CSC since 2005 and was also CSC’s founder. Dr. Keirstead has agreed to continue serving as
CSC’s President following the Closing of the CSC Acquisition. Dr. Keirstead is an internationally known stem cell expert and has worked on stem cell-based therapies for late stage cancers,
motor neuron diseases, spinal cord injury and retinal diseases. Other management experience includes founder and CEO of Ability Biomedical Corporation, whose technology was sold to Bristol
Myers Squibb. He founded and directed the Sue and Bill Gross
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Stem Cell Research Center at the University of California at Irvine as a Full Professor of that institute, and served as a Scientific Advisory Committee Member of the California Stem Cell
Initiative that resulted in a $3 billion stem cell fund. Dr. Keirstead received his Ph.D. in neuroscience from the University of British Columbia in Vancouver, Canada, for which he received the
Cameron Award for the outstanding Ph.D. thesis in the country, and his Post-Doctoral Fellowship from Cambridge University, England.

Robert O. Dillman, M.D. Dr. Dillman, age 67, has served as Chief Medical Officer of CSC since 2011. Dr. Dillman has agreed to continue serving as CSC’s Chief Medical Officer
following the Closing of the CSC Acquisition, at which time he was also appointed as NeoStem’s VP, Oncology. Dr. Dillman has served as the Executive Medical Director of the Hoag Hospital
Institute for Research and Education, in Newport Beach, California, a position he has held since 2011. Prior to this position he served as Executive Medical Director of the Hoag Family Cancer
Institute from 2008-2011, and was Medical Director of the Hoag Cancer Center from 1989-2008. He has also served as a Clinical Professor of Medicine at the University of California, Irvine
(“UCI”) since 1989. Dr. Dillman chaired the Cancer Biotherapy Research Group from 1990 to 2002, and is a past President and board Member of the International Society for Immunotherapy of
Cancer. Dr.Dillman has directed a cell biology research laboratory focused on patient-specific cell therapies for more than 20 years. He is an internationally recognized leader in cancer
immunotherapy approaches, including monoclonal antibodies, adoptive cell therapies, IL-2, and cancer vaccines. He has authored more than 300 medical publications and is recognized
internationally for his work in lung cancer, lymphoma, Chronic Lymphocytic Leukemia (CLL), melanoma, and kidney cancers. He was the first physician in Orange County, California to be
selected as one of the Best Doctors in America in Hematology and/or Oncology. In 2006, Dr. Dillman was named Orange County Physician of the Year by the Orange County Medical
Association. In 2008, he received Hoag Hospital’s first endowed chair, the Grace E. Hoag Endowed Chair of Oncology and in 2010, he became one of only five recipients in the world to receive
the Distinguished Service Award from the Society for Immunotherapy of Cancer. Dr. Dillman received his undergraduate degree from Stanford University and medical degree from Baylor
College of Medicine. He also completed both his internship and residency in Internal Medicine at Baylor College of Medicine, and served as a Chief Resident. He completed his fellowship in
Hematology/Oncology at University of California, San Diego Medical Center.

  
Continuing Employees

Additionally, pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, NeoStem has agreed to provide to each employee of CSC that NeoStem decides to retain and who accepts an offer of
employment with NeoStem (each, a “Continuing Employee”), for no less than 12 months following the Closing, or if shorter, for the period for which they are actually employed, (i) base salary
and cash bonus opportunities no less than those provided by CSC prior to the Closing and (ii) welfare benefits and perquisites (subject to certain exceptions) that are generally comparable in the
aggregate to those provided by CSC; provided that the foregoing provisions regarding Continuing Employees shall not constitute any obligation on the part of NeoStem to retain, or any right on
the part of any person to continued employment or benefits.

In connection with the consummation of the Mergers, and to permit employees of the Company’s NeoStem Oncology, LLC subsidiary to participate in the Company’s 2012 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), the NeoStem board of directors amended the ESPP to (i) designate NeoStem Oncology, LLC as a “designated subsidiary” under the ESPP and (ii) provide that
prior service with CSC shall be recognized for purposes of determining whether an employee of NeoStem Oncology, LLC is an eligible employee for purposes of the ESPP.

RISK FACTORS

Set forth below are certain risk factors relating to the CSC Acquisition and the CSC business acquired by NeoStem. These are not the only risks of the acquisition and the CSC business,
but represent the risks that we believe to be material. The risk factors relating to CSC will apply to the combined company going forward because a substantial portion of the business of the
combined company will now consist of CSC’s business. Before investing in NeoStem securities, you should also carefully consider the risk factors associated with NeoStem’s historic business,
including those set forth under the caption “Risk Factors” in NeoStem’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, as filed with the SEC on March 13, 2014, and
the risk factors and other information contained in NeoStem’s other filings with the SEC from time to time.

RISKS RELATED TO NEOSTEM’S ACQUISITION OF CSC AND THE MERGERS

NeoStem anticipates that it will need substantial additional financing in the future to continue its operations, including the operations of CSC acquired in the CSC Acquisition. If NeoStem is
unable to raise additional capital as and when needed, or on acceptable terms, the combined company may be forced to delay, reduce or eliminate one or more of its product development
programs or expansion of its contract and manufacturing operations and its business will be harmed.
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NeoStem anticipates that it will require substantial additional capital to fund its current operating plan, including, among other things, the continued development of NeoStem’s cell
therapy product candidates and the operation, enhancement and expansion of its contract development and manufacturing operations to support its customers and clinical development activities.

The CSC business acquired by NeoStem will require significant additional financing. CSC is a development stage company with no commercial products. CSC’s current clinical
development candidate Melapuldencel-T (and any other product candidates) will require significant investment before they can be commercialized. A Phase 3 clinical trial of Melapuldencel-T to
treat Stage IV or recurrent melanoma is expected to be initiated in 2014. The combined company’s research and development expenses will increase with the addition of the ongoing activities of
the CSC business, particularly as the Phase 3 clinical trial commences with respect to CSC’s lead product candidate Melapuldencel-T. Subject to obtaining regulatory approval of any present or
future CSC product candidate, the combined company expects to incur significant commercialization expenses for product sales and marketing. In addition, the research and development
expenses associated with NeoStem’s existing products have increased significantly over the past two years as a result of the initiation of the AMR-001 Phase 2 clinical trial in 2012. This trial
completed enrollment in December 2013. Research and development expenses also have been increasing with respect to the Company’s T Regulatory Cell Program, particularly due to the
licensing of patents, data and collaboration with third parties. The Company's clinical activities are expected to continue to grow as AMR-001 is developed for AMI and other clinical trials for
indications are launched under NeoStem’s CD34 Cell Program and T Regulatory Cell Program. These programs will require significant investment over a period of several years before they
could be approved by FDA and commercialized by NeoStem, if ever. If the results of the current Phase 2 and other clinical trials are positive, the Company will need to conduct additional clinical
studies of the product, including larger and more expensive pivotal Phase 3 studies. To do so, NeoStem will need to raise additional money in the capital markets, enter into collaboration
agreements with third parties or undertake some combination thereof. If NeoStem is unsuccessful in these efforts, the Company will likely need to otherwise delay or abandon the foregoing trials.

The amount and timing of NeoStem's future capital requirements also will likely depend on many other factors, including:

• the scope, progress, results, costs, timing and outcomes of NeoStem’s other cell therapy research and development programs and product candidates;

• NeoStem’s ability to enter into any collaboration agreements with third parties for its other product candidates and the timing and terms of any such agreements;

• the costs associated with the consummation of one or more strategic transactions;

• the timing of and the costs involved in obtaining regulatory approvals for NeoStem’s product candidates, a process which could be particularly lengthy or complex given the FDA's
limited experience with marketing approval for cell therapy products;

• the costs of maintaining, expanding and protecting NeoStem’s intellectual property portfolio, including potential litigation costs and liabilities; and

• the cost of expansion of NeoStem’s contract development and manufacturing operations, including but not limited to the costs of expanded facilities, equipment costs, engineering
and innovation initiatives and personnel.

To both fund the Company’s clinical studies and support its future operations, NeoStem would likely seek to raise capital through a variety of different public and/or private financings
vehicles. This could include, but not be limited to, use of NeoStem’s common stock purchase agreement with Aspire Capital, potential warrant exercises, option exercises, issuances of other debt
or equity securities in public or private financings, and/or sale of assets. If NeoStem raises capital through the sale of equity, or securities convertible into equity, it would result in dilution to the
Company’s then existing stockholders. Servicing the interest and principal repayment obligations under debt facilities could divert funds that would otherwise be available to support research and
development, clinical or commercialization activities. In certain cases, NeoStem also may seek funding through collaborative arrangements, that would likely require the Company to relinquish
certain rights to its technology or product candidates and share in the future revenues associated with the partnered product.

Future cash requirements of the combined company may vary materially from those currently anticipated because of expenses relating to marketing, advertising, sales, distribution,
research and development and regulatory affairs (including the expenses related to clinical trials), as well as the costs of maintaining, expanding and protecting the Company’s intellectual
property portfolio, including potential litigation costs and liabilities. Ultimately, the Company may be unable to raise capital or enter into collaborative relationships on terms that are acceptable to
us, if at all. The Company’s inability to obtain necessary capital or
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financing to fund its future operating needs could adversely affect the combined company’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

Upon the occurrence of certain “Milestone” events as specified in the Merger Agreement, NeoStem would be obligated to make specified Milestone Payments to the former securityholders of
CSC. However, many of the Milestones involve events preceding any commercialization of CSC’s product, and so NeoStem would not receive any corresponding revenue in connection with
such Milestone. Additionally, there can be no assurances that the Milestones will be achieved.

In addition to the Closing Merger Consideration, former securityholders of CSC will be entitled to receive, if payable after the Closing, certain Milestone Payments in an amount of up to
$90 million in the aggregate, payable in shares of NeoStem common stock or cash, in NeoStem’s sole discretion (subject to certain qualifications as described in the Merger Agreement), in the
event of the successful completion of certain Milestone events in connection with the CSC business, all as described more fully in the Merger Agreement. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement,
NeoStem has agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts to achieve the Milestones, and expects to incur substantial expenses in connection with the development of Melapudencel-T and
otherwise achieving the Milestones. However, many of the Milestone Payments involve events in the development life-stage of CSC’s product which would precede commercial sale of the
product, meaning that NeoStem would be obligated to make certain specified Milestone Payments while not receiving any corresponding revenue in connection with such Milestones. While
NeoStem believes that achievement of the Milestones would be positive developments for NeoStem’s business, there can be no assurances that the Milestones will be achieved.

The issuance of NeoStem common stock in connection with the CSC Acquisition could decrease the market price of the NeoStem common stock and has caused NeoStem’s stockholders to
experience immediate dilution. Further dilution to NeoStem stockholders will result upon the payment of any Milestone Payments in shares of NeoStem common stock.

At Closing, NeoStem issued 5,329,593 shares of NeoStem common stock (subject to payment of nominal cash in lieu of fractional shares), or approximately 18.6% of the number of
shares of NeoStem common stock outstanding as of May 2, 2014, to former CSC securityholders. While approximately (i) 30% of this Closing Merger Consideration is subject to escrow (for 15
months with respect to the Escrow Amount and for 12 months with respect to the CSC Expenses Escrow Amount) and (ii) 70% of this Closing Merger Consideration is subject to a one-year lock-
up (with half of the shares subject to the lock-up being released from this restriction six months after Closing), the issuance of this NeoStem common stock may result in fluctuations in the market
price of NeoStem common stock, including a stock price decline. As a result of the issuance of a large number of shares of NeoStem common stock, NeoStem stockholders experienced
immediate dilution as of the Closing. Moreover, if NeoStem elects to issue additional shares of NeoStem common stock (rather than cash) in connection with the payment of any Milestone
Payments that become payable, these additional issuances will result in additional dilution to NeoStem stockholders and may cause further fluctuations in the market price of NeoStem common
stock.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, NeoStem has agreed to seek stockholder approval to issue additional shares of NeoStem common stock in connection with Milestone Payments, in
accordance with Nasdaq rules. There can be no assurance that NeoStem’s stockholders will approve such issuance.

The Merger Agreement requires NeoStem to seek stockholder approval at NeoStem’s next annual meeting (and if not approved, to solicit such approval at subsequent annual meetings)
for the possible issuance of shares of NeoStem common stock pursuant to the Merger Agreement in the aggregate in excess of 19.99% of NeoStem’s outstanding shares pursuant to Nasdaq
Listing Rule 5635, so that NeoStem may, at its discretion, issue additional shares of NeoStem common stock upon achievement of any Milestone. There can be no assurance that NeoStem will be
able to obtain such approval at its next annual meeting, or any subsequent annual meeting, and in such event NeoStem would not have the flexibility of paying Milestone Payments in shares. In
the event NeoStem were to pay Milestone Payments in cash (instead of shares), such cash payments could have a material adverse effect on NeoStem’s liquidity.

The integration of CSC and other acquired businesses may present significant challenges to NeoStem.

Achieving the anticipated benefits of the CSC Acquisition will depend in part upon whether CSC and NeoStem can integrate their businesses in an efficient and effective manner. In
addition, NeoStem has in the past acquired and may acquire additional businesses from time to time. The integration of CSC and any future businesses that NeoStem may acquire involves a
number of risks, including, but not limited to:

• demands on management related to the increase in the size of NeoStem after the acquisition;
• the diversion of management’s attention from the management of daily operations to the integration of operations;
• higher integration costs than anticipated;
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• failure to achieve synergies and costs savings;
• difficulties in the assimilation and retention of employees; and
• difficulties in the integration of departments, systems, including accounting systems, technologies, books and records, and procedures, as well as in maintaining uniform standards,

controls, including internal control over financial reporting required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related procedures and policies.

If NeoStem cannot successfully integrate CSC or other acquired businesses, NeoStem may experience material negative consequences to its business, financial condition or results of
operations. Successful integration of CSC and other acquired businesses will depend on NeoStem’s ability to manage these operations, to realize opportunities for revenue growth presented by
offerings and expanded geographic market coverage and, to some degree, to eliminate redundant and excess costs. Because of difficulties in combining geographically distant operations,
NeoStem may not be able to achieve the benefits that it hopes to achieve as a result of the Mergers.

Failure to achieve expected benefits of the Mergers and integrate CSC’S operations with NeoStem’s could adversely affect NeoStem following the completion of the Mergers and the market
price of NeoStem common stock.

Although NeoStem expects to realize strategic, operational and financial benefits as a result of the CSC Acquisition, NeoStem cannot be certain whether, and to what extent, such
benefits will be achieved in the future. In particular, the success of the CSC Acquisition will depend on achieving the hoped-for collaborative and development-oriented benefits, and no
assurances can be given that NeoStem will be able to do so. In addition, in order to obtain the benefits of the CSC Acquisition, NeoStem must integrate CSC’S operations and such integration
may be complex and the failure to do so quickly and effectively may negatively affect results of operations.

The market price of NeoStem common stock may decline as a result of the CSC Acquisition if the integration of NeoStem and CSC is unsuccessful, takes longer than expected or fails to
achieve financial benefits to the extent anticipated by financial analysts or investors, or the effect of the CSC Acquisition on NeoStem’s financial results is otherwise not consistent with the
expectations of financial analysts or investors.

NeoStem’s and CSC’s business relationships, including customer relationships, may be subject to disruption due to uncertainty associated with the CSC Acquisition.

Parties with which NeoStem and its new CSC subsidiary do business, including customers and suppliers, may experience uncertainty associated with the recently-closed CSC
Acquisition, including with respect to current or future business relationships with CSC or NeoStem. As a result, the combined company’s business relationships may be subject to disruptions if
customers, suppliers and others attempt to negotiate changes in existing business relationships or consider entering into business relationships with parties other than NeoStem or CSC. These
disruptions could have an adverse effect on the businesses, financial condition, results of operations or prospects of NeoStem.

NeoStem expects to incur additional significant transaction- and merger-related costs in connection with the CSC Acquisition.

In addition to future development and other operational costs on a going-forward basis, NeoStem expects to incur additional costs associated with combining the operations of the two
companies. These costs are expected to include facilities and systems consolidation costs, employment-related costs, and costs related to integration planning and execution. NeoStem anticipates
incurring additional costs as the process of integrating the businesses continues, and NeoStem may incur unanticipated costs as well. Although NeoStem hopes that the elimination of duplicative
costs, as well as the realization of other efficiencies and potential revenues related to the integration of the businesses, may allow NeoStem to offset incremental transaction and merger-related
costs over time, this net benefit may not be achieved in the near term, or at all.

NeoStem may be unable to hire and retain sufficient qualified personnel; the loss of any of its key executive officers could adversely affect NeoStem.

NeoStem believes that its future success will depend in large part on its ability to attract and retain highly skilled, knowledgeable, sophisticated and qualified managerial, professional
and technical personnel. In addition, the success of the combined operations will depend in part upon NeoStem’s ability to retain key employees of CSC. Key employees may depart because of
issues relating to the difficulty of integration. While NeoStem has entered into an employment agreement with Dr. Hans Keirstead (who will continue to serve as CSC’s President), and NeoStem
has also received countersigned offer letters from CSC employees that have been retained to continue to serve following the Closing, no assurance can be given that NeoStem will be able to retain
key employees of CSC for any specified period of time.
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The market price of NeoStem common stock may fluctuate significantly, and may be subject to enhanced volatility as a result of the CSC Acquisition.

There has been significant volatility in the market prices for publicly traded shares of biopharmaceutical companies, including shares of NeoStem common stock. NeoStem expects that
the market price of its common stock will continue to fluctuate. The price of NeoStem common stock fluctuated from a high of $9.89 per share to a low of $5.00 per share (as adjusted for
NeoStem’s July 2013 reverse stock split) for the year ended December 31, 2013. The price of NeoStem common stock may not remain at or exceed current levels. The following key factors
related to the combined company’s business, among others, may have an adverse impact on the market price of NeoStem common stock:

• adverse results of NeoStem’s clinical trials or adverse events associated with its marketed products (including adverse results or, if commercialized, adverse events with respect to
Melapuldencel-T);

• NeoStem’s products’ ability to demonstrate efficacy or an acceptable safety profile;
• product introductions and sales by NeoStem’s competitors;
• new product discovery and development by NeoStem’s competitors;
• NeoStem’s ability to obtain and maintain regulatory approval for its existing products as well as for new products in development;
• announcements of technical or product developments by NeoStem’s competitors;
• NeoStem’s failure to effectively implement its business strategy or NeoStem’s adoption and implementation of a business strategy that places it at a disadvantage to its competitors;
• market conditions for pharmaceutical and biotechnology stocks;
• market conditions generally;
• governmental regulation;
• new accounting pronouncements, regulatory rulings or actions by the FDA;
• health care legislation generally and potential changes in insurance or governmental reimbursement policies on NeoStem’s products and pipeline products;
• public announcements by competitors regarding medical advances in the treatment of the disease states that NeoStem is targeting;
• patent or proprietary rights developments and/or changes in patent laws, including NeoStem’s ability to successfully protect and enforce its intellectual property rights;
• royalties and contract revenues that NeoStem becomes obligated to pay;
• reimbursement policies or rates for NeoStem’s products;
• product manufacturing, including NeoStem’s arrangements with third party suppliers;
• NeoStem’s expenses and net income;
• NeoStem’s liquidity;
• asset and liability risk management by NeoStem;
• the outcome of litigation involving NeoStem’s products or processes related to production and formulation of those products or uses of those products;
• competition; and
• operational and legal risks.

NeoStem common stock may be subject to additional volatility as a result of any adverse developments in connection with the development of the acquired Melapuldencel-T product. In
addition, the stock market in general and the biotechnology sector in particular have experienced extreme volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of a particular
company. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of NeoStem common stock.

RISKS RELATED TO THE ACQUIRED CSC BUSINESS

Risks Related to CSC’s Financial Condition and Need for Additional Capital

CSC has incurred significant losses since its inception and it is anticipated that CSC will continue to incur significant losses for the foreseeable future. Even if CSC obtains regulatory
approval for Melapuldencel-T or its other product candidates, it (and the combined company on a consolidated basis) may never achieve profitability.

CSC has incurred significant losses since its inception and it is anticipated that it will continue to incur significant losses for the foreseeable future. CSC has a limited operating history.
To date, CSC has focused primarily on clinical development of its lead product candidate, Melapuldencel-T. Melapuldencel-T, and CSC’s other product candidates that CSC is developing, will
require substantial additional development time and resources before CSC would be able to apply for or receive regulatory approvals and begin generating revenue from product sales. CSC has
incurred significant net losses in each year since CSC’s inception. As
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of March 31, 2014, CSC’s total expenses and operating losses since inception were approximately $19.4 million. The size of CSC’s future net losses will depend, in part, on the rate of future
expenditures and CSC’s ability to generate revenue.

CSC expects to continue to incur substantial and increased expenses as it expand its development activities, particularly with respect to commencing its planned Phase 3 clinical trial for
Melapuldencel-T. In addition, CSC’s expenses could increase beyond expectations if CSC is required by the FDA to perform studies in addition to those that are currently anticipated. Even if
Melapuldencel-T or any of CSC’s other product candidates are approved for commercial sale, to the extent CSC does not engage a third party collaborator or co-promoter, CSC anticipates
incurring significant costs associated with commercializing Melapuldencel-T or any other product candidate.

If Melapuldencel-T is not successfully developed or commercialized, or if revenue from Melapuldencel-T sales is insufficient following marketing approval, CSC will not be able to
overcome CSC’s expected significant and increasing expenses and achieve profitability and the business of NeoStem’s CSC subsidiary may fail. Any such occurence would have a material
adverse effect on the combined company. CSC’s ability to generate for the combined company future revenue from product sales depends heavily on CSC’s success in:

• completing the planned Phase 3 clinical trial for Melapuldencel-T, as well as commencing and advancing research and development and clinical trials for CSC’s other product candidates;
• obtaining regulatory approval for Melapuldencel-T and CSC’s other product candidates; and
• launching and commercializing Melapuldencel-T and CSC’s other product candidates for which CSC receives regulatory approval, either by building an internal sales force or by

collaborating with third parties.

Even if CSC successfully obtains regulatory approval to market Melapuldencel-T in the United States, CSC’s ability to generate revenue from Melapuldencel-T or CSC’s other product
candidates will be limited unless CSC can also obtain regulatory approvals and achieve commercial success outside of the United States.

As a result of the foregoing, CSC expects to continue to incur significant and increasing losses and negative cash flows for the foreseeable future, and may never achieve or be able to
maintain profitability.

Risks Related to CSC’s Clinical Development Programs and Regulatory Approval

CSC’s success depends on the success of its product candidates, including Melapuldencel-T, and there can be no assurances that CSC’s product candidates will be safe or effective, complete
successful clinical trials, receive regulatory approval or be successfully commercialized.

The development and regulatory approval process takes many years to complete and requires the expenditure of substantial resources. CSC has product candidates in various stages of
clinical development, including Melapuldencel-T for which a Phase 3 clinical trial is planned. Additional clinical trials will be required before CSC will be able to submit a BLA to the FDA for
approval of Melapuldencel-T or its other product candidates. Moreover, despite CSC’s expenditure of substantial resources and its continued efforts to develop Melapuldencel-T and its other
product candidates, the clinical trials required for FDA approval of these product candidates may never be successfully completed. If the required clinical trials are not successful, CSC’s product
candidates will not receive regulatory approval. Even if CSC’s product candidates receive regulatory approvals, they may never be successfully commercialized. If Melapuldencel-T or CSC’s
other product candidates do not receive regulatory approval or if they are not successfully commercialized, CSC may be unable to generate revenue, or become profitable, which would adversely
affect the ability of CSC’s subsidiary to continue operations and well as the combined company’s results of operations.

Any failure or delay in commencing or completing clinical trials for CSC’s product candidates could harm the combined company’s business.

The commencement and completion of clinical trials for CSC’s product candidates may be delayed, prevented or halted for many reasons, including:

• having the capital resources available to fund preclinical studies and clinical trials;
• CSC’s ability to obtain approval by institutional review boards (“IRBs”) to commence clinical trials;
• CSC’s ability to manufacture or obtain from third parties materials sufficient for use in preclinical studies and clinical trials;
• poor effectiveness of product candidates during clinical trials;
• safety issues or side effects of our product candidates;
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• delays or failure in reaching agreement on acceptable terms with prospective contract research organizations (“CROs”) and clinical trial sites, the terms of which can be subject to
extensive negotiation and may vary significantly among different CROs and trial sites;

• delays or failure by CROs, investigators and clinical trial sites in ensuring the proper and timely conduct of clinical trials;
• delays in patient enrollment and variability in the number and types of patients available for clinical trials;
• the inability to enroll a sufficient number of patients in trials to ensure adequate statistical power to detect statistically significant treatment effects;;
• changes in regulatory requirements, policy, and guidelines; and
• varying interpretation of data by CSC, the FDA, and similar foreign regulatory agencies.

It is possible that CSC’s product candidates will not successfully complete the required clinical trials. Accordingly, CSC may not seek or receive the regulatory approvals necessary to
market its product candidates. Any failure or delay in commencing or completing clinical trials or obtaining regulatory approvals for product candidates would prevent or delay their
commercialization.

The results of CSC’s preclinical studies or previous clinical trials may not be predictive of the results that CSC will see in its clinical trials. The prior results achieved by CSC in
preclinical studies or clinical trials may not be indicative of future results in subsequent clinical trials. CSC’s progress and results from the early phases of clinical trials of its product candidates
may not be indicative of progress or results that will be achieved with larger populations, which could be unfavorable. For example, all clinical trials of Melapuldencel-T to date have been
conducted by Dr. Dillman. Clinical trials conducted by other investigators may not demonstrate the same results. Moreover, CSC does not know if any favorable results it achieves in earlier and
smaller clinical trials will have a lasting or repeatable effect. If a larger group of subjects does not experience positive results or if any favorable results do not demonstrate a beneficial effect,
CSC’s product candidates may not receive approval from the FDA for further clinical trials or commercialization.

CSC expects to rely on third parties to conduct, supervise and monitor CSC’s clinical trials, and if those third parties perform in an unsatisfactory manner, it may harm the combined
company’s business.

CSC expects to rely on CROs and clinical trial sites to ensure the proper and timely conduct of its clinical trials. While CSC will have agreements governing their activities, CSC will
have limited influence over their actual performance. CSC will control only certain aspects of its CROs’ activities. Nevertheless, CSC will be responsible for ensuring that each of its clinical trials
is conducted in accordance with the applicable protocol, legal, regulatory and scientific standards, and CSC’s reliance on the CROs does not relieve it of its regulatory responsibilities.

CSC and its CROs are required to comply with the good clinical practices (“GCPs”) for conducting, recording and reporting the results of clinical trials to assure that data and reported
results are credible and accurate and that the rights, integrity and confidentiality of clinical trial participants are protected. The FDA enforces these GCPs through periodic inspections of trial
sponsors, principal investigators and clinical trial sites. Upon inspection, the FDA may determine that CSC’s clinical trials did not comply with GCPs. If CSC or its CROs fail to comply with
applicable GCPs, the clinical data generated in CSC’s future clinical trials may be deemed unreliable and the FDA may require us to perform additional clinical trials before approving any
marketing applications, if at all. In addition, CSC’s future clinical trials will require a sufficiently large number of test subjects to evaluate the safety and effectiveness of CSC’s product
candidates. Accordingly, if CROs fail to comply with standards or fail to recruit a sufficient number of patients, CSC may be required to repeat such clinical trials, which would delay the
regulatory approval process.

CSC’s CROs will not be CSC’s employees, and CSC will not be able to control whether or not they devote sufficient time and resources to CSC’s clinical and nonclinical programs. In
addition, the use of CROs results in the disclosure of proprietary information to these parties, which could increase the risk that this information will be misappropriated. These CROs may also
have relationships with other commercial entities, including competitors of CSC or the combined company, for whom they may also be conducting clinical trials, or other drug development
activities which could harm the combined company’s competitive position. As a result of these relationships, these CROs could determine that the clinical requirements of other parties take
precedence over the services they provide to CSC. If CROs do not successfully carry out their contractual duties or obligations, fail to meet expected deadlines or if the quality or accuracy of the
clinical data they obtain is compromised due to the failure to adhere to CSC’s clinical protocols or regulatory requirements, or for any other reasons, CSC’s clinical trials may be extended,
delayed or terminated, and CSC may not be able to obtain regulatory approval for, or successfully commercialize its product candidates. As a result, the combined company’s financial results and
the commercial prospects for such products and any future product candidates that CSC develops would be harmed, and the combined company’s costs could increase its ability to generate
revenues could be delayed or eliminated.
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The FDA has reviewed the protocol for CSC’s planned single pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of Melapuldencel-T; however, agreement by the FDA with the protocol under the SPA process does
not guarantee that the trial will be successful or that, if successful, Melapuldencel-T will receive marketing approval.

The FDA has reviewed, under the SPA process, the protocol for CSC’s Phase 3 clinical trial of Melapuldencel-T. An SPA is an agreement from the FDA that the design of a particular
Phase 3 trial, including clinical endpoints, and statistical analyses are acceptable to serve as the basis for submission of a BLA. The SPA process allows the FDA to evaluate the proposed design
and size of Phase 3 clinical trials that are intended to form the primary basis for determining a drug candidate’s efficacy.

An SPA does not guarantee that Melapuldencel-T will receive marketing approval. Although an SPA is generally binding on the FDA, the FDA can choose not to honor an SPA for a
number of reasons, including if the FDA identifies a substantial scientific issue essential to determining safety or efficacy after the study begins, public health concerns emerge that were
unrecognized at the time of the protocol assessment, the sponsor and FDA agree to the change in writing, or if the study sponsor fails to follow the protocol that was agreed upon with the FDA.
Issues related to safety, study conduct, bias, deviation from the protocol, statistical power, patient completion rates, changes in scientific or medical parameters or internal inconsistencies in the
data may also affect approvability. In addition, Melapuldencel-T may not achieve the primary endpoint of the trial. Even if the primary endpoint in CSC’s pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial is achieved,
Melapuldencel-T may not be approved. Even with the SPA review, the FDA may still require additional pivotal clinical trials as a condition for approving Melapuldencel-T. Many companies that
have been granted SPAs have ultimately failed to obtain final approval to market their products.

If the results for the primary endpoint are not robust, are subject to confounding factors, or are not adequately supported by other study endpoints, the FDA may refuse to approve CSC’s
BLA based upon a single clinical trial. The FDA may also seek the guidance of an outside advisory committee prior to making its final decision.

Products that appear promising in research and development may be delayed or may fail to reach later stages of clinical development.

The successful development of pharmaceutical products is highly uncertain. Product candidates that appear promising in research and development may be delayed or fail to reach later
stages of development. Decisions regarding the further development of product candidates must be made with limited and incomplete data, which makes it difficult to ensure or even accurately
predict whether the allocation of limited resources and the expenditure of additional capital on specific product candidates will result in desired outcomes. Preclinical and clinical data can be
interpreted in different ways, and negative or inconclusive results or adverse events during a clinical trial could delay, limit or prevent the development of a product candidate, which would harm
the combined company’s.

CSC is subject to the requirement of BLA approval for each of its products before they may be lawfully marketed.

Before obtaining regulatory approvals for the commercial sale of any product candidate, CSC must demonstrate through preclinical testing and clinical trials that the product candidate is
safe and effective for use in each target indication. This process takes many years and requires the expenditure of substantial resources. To date, CSC has not successfully demonstrated that any
product candidate, including its lead product candidate Melapuldencel-T, is safe and effective for any intended use. There can be no assurances that CSC will demonstrate that any product
candidate has an acceptable risk-benefit profile as well as safety and efficacy sufficient for regulatory approval. CSC may also encounter delays or rejections due to additional government
regulation from future legislation, administrative action, or changes in FDA policy. If any of CSC’s current product candidates do not obtain approval, the combined company’s business could be
harmed. If CSC is unable to discover or successfully develop drugs that are effective and safe in humans and receive regulatory approval, the combined company’s business could be harmed.

Melapuldencel-T is an immunotherapy that is based on a novel technology utilizing a patient’s own tissue. This may raise development issues that CSC may not be able to resolve, regulatory
issues that could delay or prevent approval or personnel issues that may prevent CSC from further developing and commercializing its product candidates.

CSC’s Melapuldencel-T product candidate is an immunotherapy candidate that is produced by using a patient’s own dendritic cells loaded with antigens from irradiated tumor stem cells
from the patient which are then suspended in an immune stimulant. Regulatory approval of novel product candidates such as Melapuldencel-T, which is manufactured using novel manufacturing
processes, can be more complex and expensive and take longer than other, more well-known or extensively studied pharmaceutical or biopharmaceutical products, due to the FDA’s lack of
experience with them. To CSC’s knowledge, the FDA has only approved one personalized immunotherapy product to date. This lack of experience may lengthen the regulatory review process,
and/or require CSC to conduct additional studies or clinical trials, which would increase the combined company’s

13



development costs, lead to changes in regulatory positions and interpretations, delay or prevent approval and commercialization of these product candidates or lead to significant post-approval
limitations or restrictions.

The novel nature of CSC’s product candidates also means that fewer people are trained in or experienced with product candidates of this type, which may make it difficult to find, hire
and retain capable personnel for research, development and manufacturing positions.

A fast track designation by the FDA may not lead to a faster development, regulatory review or approval process.

If a product is intended for the treatment of a serious or life-threatening condition and the product demonstrates the potential to address unmet needs for this condition, the treatment
sponsor may apply for FDA fast track designation. CSC’s Melapuldencel-T product candidate has received fast track designation. Fast track designation does not ensure that CSC will experience
a faster development, regulatory review or approval process compared to conventional FDA procedures. Additionally, the FDA may withdraw fast track designation if it believes that the
designation is no longer supported by data from CSC’s clinical development program.

There can be no assurances that the combined company will realize the desired benefits of the orphan drug designation granted to Melapuldencel-T.

The FDA granted orphan drug designation for Melapuldencel-T because it is intended to treat a rare disease or condition, which is generally a disease or condition that affects fewer than
200,000 individuals in the United States.

If a product that has orphan designation subsequently receives the first FDA approval for the disease or condition for which it has such designation, the product is entitled to orphan
product exclusivity, which means that the FDA may not approve any other applications to market the same drug or biological product for the same indication for seven years, except in limited
circumstances, such as (i) the drug’s orphan designation is revoked; (ii) its marketing approval is withdrawn; (iii) the orphan exclusivity holder consents to the approval of another applicant’s
product; (iv) the orphan exclusivity holder is unable to assure the availability of a sufficient quantity of drug; or (v) a showing of clinical superiority to the product with orphan exclusivity by a
competitor product. If a drug or biological product designated as an orphan product receives marketing approval for an indication broader than what is designated, it may not be entitled to orphan
product exclusivity.

Orphan product designation does not convey any advantage in or shorten the duration of the regulatory review and approval process. In addition to the potential for a period of market
exclusivity, we may be eligible for grant funding of up to $400,000 per year for four years to defray costs of clinical trial expenses, tax credits for clinical research expenses and potential
exemption form the FDA application user fee. There can be no assurances that the combined company will realize the desired benefits of the orphan drug designation granted to Melapuldencel-T.

Failure to obtain regulatory approval in foreign jurisdictions would prevent CSC from marketing its products internationally.

CSC intends to have its product candidates marketed outside the United States. To market its products in the European Union and many other non-U.S. jurisdictions, CSC must obtain
separate regulatory approvals and comply with numerous and varying regulatory requirements. To date, CSC has not filed for marketing approval of any of its product candidates and may not
receive the approvals necessary to commercialize its product candidates in any market. The approval procedure varies among countries and can involve additional testing and data review. The
time required to obtain foreign regulatory approval may differ from that required to obtain FDA approval. The foreign regulatory approval process may include all of the risks associated with
obtaining FDA approval, or may include different or additional risks. CSC may not obtain foreign regulatory approvals on a timely basis, if at all. Approval by the FDA does not ensure approval
by regulatory agencies in other countries, and approval by one foreign regulatory authority does not ensure approval by regulatory agencies in other foreign countries or by the FDA. Any failure
or delay in obtaining regulatory approval in one jurisdiction may have a negative effect on the regulatory approval process in other jurisdictions, including approval by the FDA. Failure to obtain
regulatory approval in foreign jurisdictions would harm the combined company’s.

Even if CSC’s product candidates receive regulatory approval, they would be subject to extensive regulatory requirements and could be subject to restrictions or withdrawal from the market
and CSC may be subject to penalties if CSC fails to comply with regulatory requirements or if CSC experiences unanticipated problems with its products.

Any product candidate for which CSC receives regulatory approval, together with the manufacturing processes, post-approval clinical data, and advertising and promotional activities for
such product, will be subject to continued review and regulation by the FDA and other regulatory agencies. CSC will be subject to regulatory requirements pertaining to the manufacturing of its
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product, including maintaining compliance with cGMP, and will be subject to periodic inspections by the FDA and other regulatory authorities. Even if regulatory approval of a product candidate
is granted, the approval may be subject to limitations on the indicated uses for which the product candidate may be marketed or on the conditions of approval, or contain requirements for costly
post-marketing testing and surveillance to monitor the safety or efficacy of the product candidate. Later discovery of previously unknown problems with CSC’s products or their manufacture, or
failure to comply with regulatory requirements, may result in, among other things:

• warning or untitled letters;
• restrictions on the products or manufacturing processes;
• withdrawal of the products from the market;
• voluntary or mandatory recalls;
• fines;
• suspension of regulatory approvals;
• product seizures; or
• injunctions or the imposition of civil or criminal penalties.

If CSC is slow or otherwise unable to adapt to changes in existing regulatory requirements, CSC may lose marketing approval for any products that may be approved in the future. CSC’s
product candidates may never achieve market acceptance even if CSC obtains regulatory approvals.

The commercial potential and profitability of CSC’s product candidates is unknown and subject to significant risk and uncertainty.

Even if CSC obtains regulatory approvals for the commercial sale of its product candidates, the commercial success of these product candidates will depend on, among other things, their
acceptance by physicians, patients, third-party payors, and other members of the medical community as a therapeutic and cost-effective alternative to competing products and treatments. If CSC’s
product candidates fail to gain market acceptance, CSC may be unable to earn sufficient revenue to continue its business. Market acceptance of, and demand for, any product that CSC may
develop and commercialize will depend on many factors, including:

• CSC’s ability to provide acceptable evidence of safety and efficacy;
• the prevalence and severity of adverse side effects;
• availability, relative cost, and relative efficacy of alternative and competing treatments;
• the effectiveness of CSC’s marketing and distribution strategy;
• publicity concerning CSC’s products or competing products and treatments; and
• CSC’s ability to obtain sufficient third-party insurance coverage or reimbursement.

If CSC’s product candidates do not become widely accepted by physicians, patients, third-party payors, and other members of the medical community, the combined company’s business
would be harmed.

If any products CSC develops become subject to unfavorable pricing regulations, third-party reimbursement practices, or healthcare reform initiatives, the combined company’s business
would be harmed.

CSC’s ability to commercialize any product candidate profitably will depend in part on the extent to which reimbursement for such product candidate and related treatments will be
available from government health administration authorities, private health insurers or private payors, and other organizations in the United States and internationally. Even if CSC succeeds in
bringing one or more product candidates to market, these products may not be considered cost-effective, and the amount reimbursed for any product may be insufficient to allow CSC to sell it
profitably. Because CSC’s product candidates are in the early stages of development, CSC is unable at this time to determine their cost-effectiveness and the level or method of reimbursement.
There may be significant delays in obtaining coverage for newly approved products, and coverage may be more limited than the purposes for which the product candidate is approved by the FDA
or foreign regulatory agencies. Moreover, eligibility for coverage does not mean that any product will be reimbursed in all cases or at a rate that covers CSC’s costs, including research,
development, manufacture, sale and distribution. Increasingly, the third-party payors who reimburse patients, such as government and private payors, are requiring that companies provide them
with predetermined discounts from list prices and are challenging the prices charged for medical products. If the reimbursement CSC is able to obtain for any product is inadequate in light of
CSC’s development and other costs, the combined company’s business would be harmed.

Recently enacted and future legislation may increase the difficulty and cost for CSC to obtain marketing approval of and commercialize its product candidates and affect the prices CSC may
obtain.
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In the United States and some foreign jurisdictions, there have been a number of legislative and regulatory changes and proposed changes regarding the healthcare system that could
prevent or delay marketing approval of CSC’s product candidates, restrict or regulate post-approval activities and affect its ability to profitably sell any products for which CSC obtains marketing
approval.

In the United States, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Medicare Modernization Act”), changed the way Medicare covers and pays for
pharmaceutical products. The legislation expanded Medicare coverage for drug purchases by the elderly and introduced a new reimbursement methodology based on average sales prices for
physician administered drugs. In addition, this legislation provided authority for limiting the number of drugs that will be covered in any therapeutic class. Cost reduction initiatives and other
provisions of this legislation could decrease the coverage and price that CSC receives for any approved products. While the Medicare Modernization Act applies only to drug benefits for
Medicare beneficiaries, private payors often follow Medicare coverage policy and payment limitations in setting their own reimbursement rates. Therefore, any reduction in reimbursement that
results from the Medicare Modernization Act may result in a similar reduction in payments from private payors.

In March 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (collectively, the “Health Care Reform Law”)
was enacted to broaden access to health insurance, reduce or constrain the growth of healthcare spending, enhance remedies against fraud and abuse, add new transparency requirements for health
care and health insurance industries, impose new taxes and fees on the health industry and impose additional health policy reforms. The Health Care Reform Law revises the definition of
“average manufacturer price” for reporting purposes, which could increase the amount of Medicaid drug rebates to states. Further, the new law imposes a significant annual fee on companies that
manufacture or import branded prescription drug products. New provisions affecting compliance have also been enacted, which may affect CSC’s business practices with health care practitioners.
CSC will not know the full effects of the Health Care Reform Law until applicable federal and state agencies issue all regulations and/or guidance required under the new law. Although it is too
early to determine the full effect of the Health Care Reform Law, the new law could have an adverse effect on the combined company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Legislative and regulatory proposals have been made to expand post-approval requirements and restrict sales and promotional activities for pharmaceutical products. Additional
legislative changes may be enacted, and FDA regulations, guidance or interpretations may be changed, and the impact of such changes on the marketing approvals of CSC’s product candidates
may be adverse to CSC’s (and, as a consequence, the combined company’s) ability to create profit.

Risks Related to CSC’s Manufacturing Activities

CSC currently manufactures its own stem cell and differentiated stem cell lines internally. If CSC encounters manufacturing or supply issues, the development of, regulatory approval for
and commercialization of Melapuldencel-T or CSC’s other product candidates may be impaired.

CSC currently controls the manufacture of its stem cell and differentiated stem cell lines internally. CSC manufactures the cell line for Melapuldencel-T itself and such manufacturing
entails risks, including:

• the inability to meet any product specifications and quality requirements consistently;
• a delay or inability to procure or expand sufficient manufacturing capacity;
• manufacturing and product quality issues related to scale-up of manufacturing;
• costs and validation of new equipment and facilities required for scale-up;
• a failure to comply with cGMP and similar foreign standards;
• the reliance on suppliers to provide materials that meet specifications and quality requirements;
• operations of CSC’s third-party manufacturers or suppliers could be disrupted by conditions unrelated to CSC’s business or operations, including the bankruptcy of the manufacturer or

supplier;
• carrier disruptions or increased costs that are beyond CSC’s control; and
• the failure to deliver products under specified storage conditions and in a timely manner.

Any of these events could lead to manufacturing problems, clinical study delays, failure to obtain regulatory approval, or otherwise impact CSC’s ability to successfully commercialize
Melapuldencel-T or its other product candidates. Some of these events could be the basis for FDA action, including injunction, recall, seizure, or total or partial suspension of production.

Manufacturing issues may arise that could increase product and regulatory approval costs or delay commercialization.
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As CSC scales up manufacturing of Melapuldencel-T and its other product candidates to bring the process into regulatory compliance necessary for clinical development and conducts
required validation and other testing, issues may arise requiring refinement or resolution in order to proceed with CSC’s planned clinical trials and obtain regulatory approval for
commercialization. CSC’s manufacturing process is still in development and may experience delays due to manufacturing issues that require CSC to conduct studies to identify the cause of the
issue and institute corrective measures to ensure the timely production of appropriate quality material for clinical evaluation. In the future, CSC may identify issues with the manufacturing
process of Melapuldencel-T or CSC’s other product candidates which could result in increased scrutiny by regulatory agencies, delays in CSC’s clinical program and regulatory approval,
increases in CSC’s (and the combined company’s) operating expenses, or failure to obtain or maintain approval for Melapuldencel-T or CSC’s other product candidates.

Risks Related to CSC’s Intellectual Property

If CSC’s technology or its product candidates conflict with the rights of others, CSC may be unable to manufacture or market its product candidates, which could harm the combined
company’s business.

The commercial success of NeoStem’s CSC subsidiary will depend in part on not infringing the patents or violating the proprietary rights of third parties. Issued patents held by others
may limit CSC’s ability to develop commercial products. All issued U.S. patents are entitled to a presumption of validity under U.S. law. CSC’s commercial success will depend significantly on
CSC’s ability to operate without infringing the patents and proprietary rights of third parties. If CSC needs licenses to such patents to permit it to manufacture, develop, or market its product
candidates CSC may be required to pay significant fees or royalties. CSC may not be able to obtain such licenses. If it does not obtain such a license, legal action based on such patents could be
brought against CSC or CSC’s distributors, licensees or collaborators. Competitors or third parties may have or may obtain patents that may cover subject matter CSC uses in developing the
technology required to bring its products to market, produce its products, or treat patients with its products. If use of technology incorporated into or used to produce CSC’s product candidates is
challenged, or if CSC’s processes or product candidates conflict with patent rights of others, third parties could bring legal actions against it claiming damages and seeking to enjoin
manufacturing and marketing of the affected products. CSC is aware of third party patents that could be asserted against it in the future, but believes that, should allegations of infringement be
asserted, it would have strong evidentiary defenses to defeat such claims. Additionally, it is not possible to predict with certainty what patent claims may issue from pending applications. With
respect to patent applications filed solely in the United States, for example, patent prosecution could proceed in secret prior to issuance of a patent. As a result, third parties with such patent
applications could obtain patents with claims relating to CSC’s product candidates, which they could attempt to assert against CSC without CSC’s prior knowledge. Further, as CSC develops its
products, such third parties may assert that CSC infringes the patents currently held or licensed by them and CSC cannot predict the outcome of any such action.

CSC protects some of its proprietary information as trade secrets and if these trade secrets are intentionally or inadvertently disclosed or misappropriated it will cause substantial damage to
CSC’s (and the combined company’s) competitive position.

Some of CSC’s proprietary information are protected as trade secrets. Trade secrets offer a relatively limited form of protection as they do not create any barrier for third parties who
independently develop this information and who may even patent the information. In the course of CSC’s research and development activities and its business activities, CSC often relies on
confidentiality agreements to try to protect CSC’s proprietary information. Such confidentiality agreements may be used, for example, when CSC talks to vendors of laboratory or clinical
development services or potential strategic partners. In addition, each of CSC’s employees is required to sign a confidentiality agreement upon joining CSC. Nevertheless, there can be no
assurance that an employee or an outside party will not make an unauthorized disclosure of CSC’s proprietary confidential information. This might happen intentionally or inadvertently. It is
possible that a competitor will make use of such information, and that CSC’s (and the combined company’s) competitive position will be compromised, in spite of any legal action CSC might
take against persons making such unauthorized disclosures. In addition, others may independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information or techniques or otherwise gain access
to CSC’s trade secrets. Enforcing a claim that a third party illegally obtained and is using any of CSC’s trade secrets is expensive and time consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. In
addition, courts outside the United States sometimes are less willing than U.S. courts to protect trade secrets. Moreover, CSC’s competitors may independently develop equivalent knowledge,
methods and know-how, which would harm the combined company’s business.

CSC (and, as a result, the combined company) may incur substantial costs as a result of litigation or other proceedings relating to patent and other intellectual property rights.

There has been significant litigation in the biotechnology industry over patents and other proprietary rights, and if CSC becomes involved in any litigation it could consume a substantial
portion of its resources, regardless of the outcome of the litigation. Many of CSC’s competitors may be better able to sustain the costs of complex patent litigation because they have substantially
greater resources. If any legal action against CSC is successful, in addition to any potential liability for damages, CSC could be
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required to obtain a license, grant cross-licenses, or pay substantial royalties in order to continue to manufacture or market the affected products. CSC cannot assure you that it would prevail in
any legal action or that any license required under a third-party patent would be made available on acceptable terms, if at all. In addition, uncertainties resulting from the initiation and
continuation of any litigation could harm the combined company’s business. Ultimately, CSC could be prevented from commercializing a product or be forced to cease some aspect of its business
operations as a result of claims of patent infringement or violation of other intellectual property rights, which could harm the combined company’s business. Should third parties file patent
applications, or be issued patents claiming technology also claimed by CSC in pending applications, CSC may be required to participate in interference proceedings in the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office to determine priority of invention, which could result in substantial costs to CSC and an adverse decision as to the priority of its inventions. An unfavorable outcome in an
interference proceeding could require CSC to cease using the technology or to license rights from prevailing third parties. CSC cannot assure you that any prevailing party would offer it a license
or do so on commercially acceptable terms.

If CSC is unable to obtain, maintain, and enforce its proprietary rights, CSC (and the combined company) may be unable to compete effectively or operate profitably.

CSC’s success depends in part on obtaining, maintaining, and enforcing its patents and other proprietary rights, and will depend in large part on its ability to:

• obtain and maintain patent and other proprietary protection for CSC’s technology, processes, and product candidates;
• enforce patents once issued and defend those patents if their enforceability is challenged;
• preserve trade secrets with respect to proprietary information; and
• operate without infringing the patents and proprietary rights of third parties.

The degree of future protection for CSC’s proprietary rights is uncertain. For example:

• CSC might not have been the first to make the inventions claimed in its patents, if issued, or disclosed in its pending patent applications;
• CSC might not have been the first to file patent applications for these inventions;
• others may independently develop similar or alternative technologies or duplicate any of CSC technologies;
• it is possible that none of CSC’s pending patent applications will result in issued patents or, if issued, these patents may not be sufficient to protect its technology or provide CSC with a

basis for commercially viable products, and may not provide CSC with any competitive advantages;
• if CSC’s pending applications issue as patents, they may be challenged by third parties as infringing, invalid, or unenforceable under U.S. or foreign laws; and
• CSC may develop additional proprietary technologies that are not patentable and that may not be adequately protected through trade secrets, if, for example, a competitor were to

independently develop duplicative, similar, or alternative technologies.

The patent position of biotechnology and pharmaceutical firms is highly uncertain and involves many complex legal and technical issues. There is no clear policy involving the breadth
of claims allowed in patents or the degree of protection afforded under patents. There can be no assuracnes that patent applications owned by or licensed to CSC will result in patents being issued
or that, if issued, the patents will give CSC an advantage over competitors with similar technology, nor can there be any assurances that CSC can obtain, maintain, and enforce all ownership and
other proprietary rights necessary to develop and commercialize its product candidates.

Even if any or all of CSC’s patent applications issue as patents, others may challenge the validity, inventorship, ownership, enforceability, or scope of CSC’s patents or other technology
used in or otherwise necessary for the development and commercialization of CSC’s product candidates. There can be no assurances that any such challenge would not be successful. Moreover,
the cost of litigation to uphold the validity of patents to prevent infringement or to otherwise protect CSC’s proprietary rights can be substantial. If the outcome of litigation is adverse to CSC,
third parties may be able to use the challenged technologies without payment to CSC. There can be no assurances that CSC’s patents, if issued, will not be infringed or successfully avoided
through design innovation. Intellectual property lawsuits are expensive and would consume time and other resources, even if the outcome were successful. In addition, there is a risk that a court
would decide that CSC’s patents, if issued, are not valid and that CSC does not have the right to stop the other party from using the inventions. There is also the risk that, even if the validity of a
patent were upheld, a court would refuse to stop the other party from using the inventions, including on the ground that its activities do not infringe that patent.

Risks Related to CSC’s Business Operations and Industry
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CSC has entered into strategic partnerships and intends to enter into additional strategic partnerships in the future. In any strategic partnership CSC may be required to relinquish important
rights to and control over the development of its product candidates or otherwise be subject to terms unfavorable to CSC.

CSC has entered into strategic partnerships in the past and plans to do so in the future now that it has become a subsidiary of NeoStem. For example, CSC has entered into a sales and
distribution agreement with Lonza AG to sell CSC’s pluripotent motor neuron progenitors for research and drug discovery. By entering into any strategic partnerships, CSC is and will be subject
to a number of risks, including:

• CSC may be unable to control the amount and timing of resources that its strategic partners devote to the development or commercialization of product candidates;
• strategic partners may delay clinical trials, design clinical trials in a manner with which CSC does not agree, provide insufficient funding, terminate a clinical trial or abandon a product

candidate, repeat or conduct new clinical trials, or require a new version of a product candidate for clinical testing;
• strategic partners may not pursue further development and commercialization of products resulting from the strategic partnering arrangement or may elect to discontinue research and

development programs;
• strategic partners may not commit adequate resources to the marketing and distribution of any future products, limiting the combined company’s potential revenues from these products;
• disputes may arise between CSC and its strategic partners that result in the delay or termination of the research, development, or commercialization of CSC’s product candidates or that

result in costly litigation or arbitration that diverts management’s attention and consumes resources;
• strategic partners may experience financial difficulties;
• strategic partners may not properly maintain or defend CSC’s intellectual property rights or may use CSC’s proprietary information in a manner that could jeopardize or invalidate CSC’s

proprietary information or expose CSC to potential litigation;
• business combinations or significant changes in a strategic partner’s business strategy may also adversely affect a strategic partner’s willingness or ability to complete its obligations

under any arrangement;
• strategic partners could independently move forward with a competing product candidate developed either independently or in collaboration with others, including CSC’s competitors;

and
• strategic partners could terminate the arrangement or allow it to expire, which would delay the development and may increase the cost of developing CSC’s product candidates.

The occurrence of any of these risks could negatively impact the development of CSC’s product candidates.

Several companies, which have substantial experience and resources, have products or are developing product candidates in the areas CSC has targeted for its product candidates.

For CSC’s product candidates in development, CSC faces competition from other entities involved in the research and development of product candidates. A number of CSC’s largest
competitors are pursuing the development or marketing of pharmaceuticals that address the same diseases that CSC is pursuing, and the number of companies seeking to develop products and
therapies for these diseases may increase. CSC also faces competition from entities developing other types of products targeting particular diseases, including other biotechnology and
pharmaceutical companies, universities, public and private research institutions, government entities and other organizations.

Furthermore, CSC’s potential products, if approved and commercialized, may compete against well-established products, many of which may be currently reimbursed by government
health administration authorities, private health insurers and health maintenance organizations. For example, if approved for the treatment of Stage IV Melanomas, CSC anticipates that its product
candidate, Melapuldencel-T, would compete with other therapies, including existing chemotherapy, immunotherapy and other common products used in the treatment of melanoma.

Many of CSC’s existing and potential competitors have substantially greater research, product development and commercial capabilities, and financial, scientific, marketing and human
resources than those of CSC and the combined company. As a result, these competitors may:

• succeed in developing competing stem cell products or alternative therapies, earlier than CSC does;
• obtain approvals for products from the FDA or other regulatory agencies more rapidly than CSC does;
• obtain patents that block or otherwise inhibit CSC’s ability to develop and commercialize its product candidates;
• develop treatments that are safer, more effective, convenient or economical than those CSC proposes to develop;
• devote greater resources to marketing or selling their products;
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• introduce products that make the continued development of CSC’s product candidates uneconomical;
• withstand price competition more successfully than CSC can;
• negotiate more favorable terms with third-party collaborators, licensees, group purchasing organizations and other large customers; and
• take advantage of acquisitions or other opportunities more readily than CSC can.

Because of these and other potential disadvantages, CSC may be unable to compete effectively with these competitors. All of CSC’s product candidates face competition and CSC
expects that competition in its industry will continue to be intense.

CSC faces potential product liability exposure, and if successful claims are brought against CSC, the combined company may incur substantial liability for a product candidate and may have
to limit such product candidate’s commercialization.

The use of CSC’s product candidates in clinical trials and the sale of any products for which CSC obtains marketing approval expose CSC (and, as a consequence, to combined company)
to the risk of product liability claims. Product liability claims might be brought against CSC by consumers, health care providers, pharmaceutical companies or others selling CSC’s products. If
CSC cannot successfully defend itself against these claims, CSC will incur substantial liabilities. Regardless of merit or eventual outcome, product liability claims may result in:

• decreased demand for CSC’s product candidates;
• impairment of CSC’s (and the combined company’s) business reputation;
• withdrawal of clinical trial participants;
• costs of related litigation;
• substantial monetary awards to patients or other claimants;
• loss of revenues; and
• inability to commercialize CSC’s product candidates.

CSC’s insurers may not reimburse CSC, or CSC’s insurance coverage may not be sufficient to reimburse CSC, for any or all expenses or losses CSC may suffer. Moreover, insurance
coverage is becoming increasingly expensive and, in the future, CSC may be unable to maintain insurance coverage at a reasonable cost or in amounts designed to protect CSC against losses due
to liability. CSC intends to expand its insurance coverage to include the sale of commercial products if CSC obtains marketing approval for its product candidates in development, but CSC may
be unable to obtain commercially reasonable product liability insurance for any products approved for marketing. On occasion, large judgments have been awarded in class action lawsuits based
on products that had unanticipated side effects. A successful product liability claim or series of claims brought against CSC that exceeds its insurance limits would harm the combined company’s
business.

If CSC uses biological and hazardous materials in a manner that causes contamination or injury or violates laws, CSC may be liable for damages.

CSC’s research and development activities and clinical trials involve the use of potentially harmful biological materials, as well as hazardous materials and chemicals. CSC cannot
completely eliminate the risk of accidental contamination or injury from the distribution, use, storage, handling, or disposal of these materials. In the event of contamination or injury, CSC could
be held liable for damages that result, and any liability could exceed its available financial resources. CSC, its collaborative partners, the third parties that conduct clinical trials on its behalf, and
its third-party manufacturers are subject to federal, state, local or foreign laws and regulations governing the use, storage, handling, and disposal of these materials and waste products. The cost of
compliance with these laws and regulations could be significant. The failure to comply with any of these laws and regulations could result in significant fines and work stoppages.

The combined company's internal computer systems, or those used by its clinical investigators, clinical research organizations or other contractors or consultants, may fail or suffer security
breaches, which could result in a material disruption of development programs for the combined company's product candidates.

NeoStem (and the newly-acquired CSC business) rely on information technology systems to keep financial records, maintain laboratory and corporate records, communicate with staff
and external parties and operate other critical functions. Any significant degradation or failure of these computer systems could cause the combined company to inaccurately calculate or lose its
data. Despite the implementation of security measures, these internal computer systems and those used by the combined company's clinical investigators, clinical research organizations, and other
contractors and consultants are vulnerable to damage from computer viruses, unauthorized access, natural disasters, terrorism, war, and telecommunication and electrical failures. The techniques
that could be used by criminal elements or foreign governments to attack these computer systems are sophisticated,
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change frequently and may originate from less regulated and remote areas of the world. While neither NeoStem nor CSC has experienced any such system failure, theft of information, accident or
security breach to date, if such an event were to occur and cause interruptions in its operations, it could result in a material disruption of the combined company's clinical development activities.
For example, the loss of clinical trial data from historical or future clinical trials could result in delays in regulatory approval efforts and significantly increase costs to recover or reproduce the
data. To the extent that any disruption, theft of information, or security breach were to result in a loss of or damage to data or applications, or inappropriate disclosure of confidential or proprietary
information, the combined company could incur liability and the clinical development and the future development of its product candidates could be delayed.

Item 2.02. Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

On May 8, 2014, NeoStem issued a press release relating to, among other things, the results of the Company's first quarter ended March 31, 2014. A copy of this press release is attached
as Exhibit 99.1 to this Current Report on Form 8-K and is incorporated into this Item 2.02 by reference.

In accordance with General Instruction B.2 of Form 8-K, the information in this Item 2.02 of this Current Report on Form 8-K, including Exhibit 99.1, shall not be deemed “filed” for the
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by
reference in any filing under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, except as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such a filing.

Item 7.01. Regulation FD Disclosure.

On May 8, 2014, NeoStem issued the press release referenced in Item 2.02 above, which also announced the Closing of the CSC Acquisition. The press release is furnished as Exhibit
99.1 to this Current Report on Form 8-K.

In addition, NeoStem intends, from time to time, to present and/or distribute to the investment community and utilize at various industry and other conferences a slide presentation. The
slide presentation is accessible on NeoStem’s website at www.neostem.com and is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.2. NeoStem undertakes no obligation to update, supplement or amend the
materials attached hereto as Exhibit 99.2.

NeoStem undertakes no obligation to update, supplement or amend the materials attached hereto as Exhibit 99.1 and Exhibit 99.2. In accordance with General Instruction B.2 of Form 8-
K, the information in this Item 7.01 of this Current Report on Form 8-K, including Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2, shall not be deemed “filed” for the purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or
otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act, except as shall be expressly set forth
by reference in such a filing.

Safe Harbor for Forward-Looking Statements

This Current Report on Form 8-K, including Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2 hereto, contains “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. These statements are typically preceded by words such as “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “will,” “may,” “should,” or similar expressions. These forward-looking statements
are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual future experience and results to differ materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements. Important factors that might
cause such a difference include, but are not limited to, costs related to the CSC Acquisition; the inability to integrate NeoStem’s and CSC’s businesses successfully; any failure of NeoStem’s
stockholders to approve the issuance of greater than 20% of NeoStem’s outstanding shares in connection with the Merger Agreement, should common stock representing 20% or more of
NeoStem’s outstanding shares become issuable as a result of Milestone Payments becoming payable pursuant to the Merger Agreement; the need for outside financing to meet capital
requirements; NeoStem’s ability to develop and grow its business; the successful development of cellular therapies, including with respect to NeoStem’s research and development and clinical
evaluation efforts in connection with the newly-acquired Melapuldencel-T product candidate, as well as NeoStem’s CD34 Cell Program, T Regulatory Cell Program and other cell therapies;
scientific and medical developments, including in connection with the development of NeoStem’s product candidates and technologies; the future of the regenerative medicine industry and the
role of stem cells and cellular therapy in that industry; regulatory issues, including intended applications and required approvals; the performance and planned expansion of the Company's
contract development and manufacturing business; and other events and factors disclosed previously and from time to time in NeoStem’s filings with the SEC, including in this Current Report on
Form 8-K under the caption “Risk Factors”, in NeoStem’s
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Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, as filed with the SEC on March 13, 2014, and the other documents filed by NeoStem with the SEC from time to time.
NeoStem does not undertake any obligation to release publicly any revisions to such forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence
of unanticipated events.

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

The following financial statements and exhibits are filed with this Current Report on Form 8-K:

(a)    Financial Statements of Businesses Acquired:

Financial Statements of California Stem Cell, Inc. and Subsidiaries for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 (Audited) and for the Three Month Periods Ended March 31, 2014
and 2013 (Unaudited).

(b)    Pro Forma Financial Information:

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Statements.

(c)     Exhibits:

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 11, 2014, by and among NeoStem, Inc., California Stem Cell, Inc., NBS Acquisition Company I,
Inc., NBS Acquisition Company II, LLC, and Jason Livingston, solely in his capacity as CSC stockholder representative(1)

10.1 Escrow Agreement, dated of May 8, 2014, by and among NeoStem, Inc., California Stem Cell, Inc., Fortis Advisors LLC, solely in its capacity as
the CSC Representative, and Continental Stock Transfer &Trust Company.

23.1 Consent of McGladrey LLP
99.1 Press Release of NeoStem, Inc. dated May 8, 2014*
99.2 Slide presentation of NeoStem, Inc. dated May 2014*

__________________
(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to NeoStem’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 14, 2014. The schedules to this agreement have been omitted pursuant to Item
601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. NeoStem will furnish copies of any schedules to the SEC upon request.

* Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2 are furnished with this Current Report on Form 8-K.
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
 
 
 

  NEOSTEM, INC.
     
     
  By: /s/ Catherine M. Vaczy  
  Name: Catherine M. Vaczy, Esq.
  Title: General Counsel

 
Dated:    May 8, 2014
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NEOSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is presented to give effect to the acquisition of the equity interests of California Stem Cell, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (“CSC”) by NeoStem, Inc. (“NeoStem”).

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is based on (i) historical consolidated financial statements of NeoStem included in its most recent annual report on Form
10-K and quarterly report on Form 10-Q and (ii) historical consolidated financial statements of CSC, included elsewhere in this current report on Form 8-K. The assumptions and adjustments
used are described in the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase price of CSC used in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements is based upon preliminary estimates. The estimates are
subject to change upon completion of the valuation of CSC's assets and liabilities. Upon completion of the purchase price allocation, we expect to make additional adjustments, and these
valuations could change significantly from those used in the pro forma condensed combined financial statements.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information does not purport to be indicative of the financial position and results of operations that NeoStem will obtain in the future,
or that NeoStem would have obtained if the acquisition of the controlling interest in CSC had been consummated as of the dates indicated in the notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial statements. The pro forma adjustments are based upon currently available information and upon certain assumptions that NeoStem believes are reasonable. The unaudited pro
forma condensed combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the historical consolidated financial statements of NeoStem included in its annual reports on Form 10-K and
quarterly reports on Form 10Q and the consolidated financial statements of CSC, included elsewhere in this current report on Form 8-K.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
March 31, 2014

  NeoStem  CSC  
Pro Forma

Adjustments  Pro Forma

ASSETS         

Current Assets         

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 41,359,652  259,300  (a) $ —  $ 41,618,952

Accounts receivable trade, net  1,887,558  64,200  (a) —  1,951,758

Inventory  1,475,812  —  —  1,475,812

Prepaid expenses and other current assets  1,833,082  44,600  (a) —  1,877,682

Total current assets  46,556,104  368,100  —  46,924,204

         

Property, plant and equipment, net  13,790,672  1,072,200  (a) —  14,862,872

Goodwill  11,117,770  —  18,473,525 (d) 29,591,295

Intangible assets, net  13,724,314  —  52,871,000 (d) 66,595,314

Other assets  1,204,765  201,500  (a) —  1,406,265

Total Assets  $ 86,393,625  $ 1,641,800  $ 71,344,525  $ 159,379,950

         

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY         

Current Liabilities         

Accounts payable  $ 3,296,078  55,600  (a) $ —  $ 3,351,678

Accrued liabilities  2,381,625  516,800  (a) (63,000) (d) 2,835,425

Notes payable  836,219  —  —  836,219

Mortgages payable  216,005  —  —  216,005

Derivative liabilities  23,175  —  —  23,175

Unearned revenues  2,033,116  526,000  (526,000) (d) 2,033,116

Total current liabilities  8,786,218  1,098,400  (589,000)  9,295,618

         

Long-term Liabilities         

Deferred income taxes  4,426,635  —  21,434,000 (e) 25,860,635

Unearned revenues  —  419,300  (419,300) (d) —

Notes payable  870,864  —  —  870,864

Mortgages payable  2,967,948  —  —  2,967,948
Acquisition-related contingent
consideration  9,640,000  —  —  9,640,000

Other long-term liabilities  635,008  212,900  (212,900) (d) 635,008

Total liabilities  27,326,673  1,730,600  20,212,800  49,270,073

         

EQUITY         

Stockholders' Equity         

Preferred stock  100  —  —  100

Preferred stock - Series D  —  3,000  (3,000) (c) —

Preferred stock - Series C  —  2,300  (2,300) (c) —

Preferred stock - Series B  —  1,700  (1,700) (c) —

Preferred stock - Series A  —  1,500  (1,500) (c) —

Common stock  28,594  5,600  (270) (b),(c) 33,924

Additional paid-in capital  310,377,112  19,562,100  31,475,495 (b),(c) 361,414,707

Treasury stock, at cost  (705,742)  —  —  (705,742)

Accumulated deficit  (250,055,662)  (19,665,000)  19,665,000 (c) (250,055,662)

Total NeoStem, Inc. stockholders' equity  59,644,402  (88,800)  51,131,725  110,687,327

Noncontrolling interests  (577,450)  —  —  (577,450)

Total equity  59,066,952  (88,800)  51,131,725  110,109,877

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity  $ 86,393,625  $ 1,641,800  $ 71,344,525  $ 159,379,950
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2014

  NeoStem  CSC  
Pro Forma

Adjustments  Pro Forma

         

Revenues  $ 4,055,575  $ 216,900  —  $ 4,272,475

         

         

Cost of revenues  3,825,444  —  —  3,825,444

Research and development  4,759,083  976,200  —  5,735,283

Selling, general, and administrative  8,970,016  931,200  —  9,901,216

   Operating Expenses  17,554,543  1,907,400  —  19,461,943

         

   Operating loss  (13,498,968)  (1,690,500)  —  (15,189,468)

         

Other income (expense):         
   Other income (expense), net  (189,551)  (2,100)  —  (191,651)

   Interest expense  (94,156)  —  —  (94,156)

  (283,707)  (2,100)  —  (285,807)

         

Net loss before provision for income taxes and
noncontrolling interests  (13,782,675)  (1,692,600)  —  (15,475,275)

Provision for income taxes  47,409  —    47,409

Net loss  (13,830,084)  (1,692,600)  —  (15,522,684)

         

Less - net loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests  (148,027)  —  —  (148,027)
Net loss attributable to NeoStem, Inc. common
shareholders  $ (13,682,057)  $ (1,692,600)  —  $ (15,374,657)

         

         

Basic and diluted loss per share         
NeoStem, Inc. common shareholders  $ (0.49)      $ (0.46)

Weighted average common shares outstanding  28,120,847    5,329,593 (f) 33,450,440
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

  NeoStem  CSC  
Pro Forma

Adjustments  Pro Forma

         

Revenues  $ 14,668,455  $ 802,700  —  $ 15,471,155

         

         

Cost of revenues  12,947,217  —  —  12,947,217

Research and development  16,917,396  3,678,200  —  20,595,596

Selling, general, and administrative  21,612,793  2,431,500  —  24,044,293

   Operating Expenses  51,477,406  6,109,700  —  57,587,106

         

   Operating loss  (36,808,951)  (5,307,000)  —  (42,115,951)

         

Other income (expense):         
   Other income (expense), net  (1,614,858)  2,700  —  (1,612,158)

   Interest expense  (281,421)  —  —  (281,421)

  (1,896,279)  2,700  —  (1,893,579)

         

Net loss before provision for income taxes and
noncontrolling interests  (38,705,230)  (5,304,300)  —  (44,009,530)

Provision for income taxes  780,104  —    780,104

Net loss  (39,485,334)  (5,304,300)  —  (44,789,634)

         

Less - net loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests  (504,090)  —  —  (504,090)
Net loss attributable to NeoStem, Inc. common
shareholders  $ (38,981,244)  $ (5,304,300)  —  $ (44,285,544)

         

         

Basic and diluted loss per share         
NeoStem, Inc. common shareholders  $ (1.90)      $ (1.71)

Weighted average common shares outstanding  20,495,771    5,329,593 (f) 25,825,364
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Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Acquisition of CSC and Basis of Presentation

Acquisition

On April 11, 2014, NeoStem, a Delaware corporation, and CSC, a Delaware corporation, entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (as such agreement may be amended from time
to time, the “CSC Merger Agreement”), among NeoStem, CSC, NBS Acquisition Sub I, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Subco”), NBS Acquisition Sub II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company (“Subco II”), and Jason Livingston, solely in his capacity as CSC stockholder representative (together with his permitted successors, the “CSC Representative”).

On May 8, 2014, pursuant to the terms of the CSC Merger Agreement, (i) Subco (a newly-formed wholly-owned subsidiary of NeoStem) merged with and into CSC (the “CSC Merger”
or the “CSC Acquisition”), with CSC surviving the CSC Merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of NeoStem, and (ii) CSC then merged with and into Subco II, another newly-formed wholly-
owned subsidiary of NeoStem (the “Subco II Merger”, and collectively with the CSC Merger, the “Mergers”).

CSC (which is now NeoStem’s wholly-owned “NeoStem Oncology, LLC” subsidiary) is a biopharmaceutical company with deep expertise in stem cell biology that is engaged in the
development of therapies using a patient’s own, i.e., autologous, cells. To date, CSC’s development efforts have been directed at immunotherapies for cancer, regenerative medicine for motor
neuron replacement and dermatology. CSC’s most advanced program is an immunotherapy which uses patients’ own tumor cells to maximize the ability of their immune system to identify
and eliminate the cancer initiating (stem) cells that are capable of reconstituting or developing new tumors, i.e., “replicating cells”. The focus of that program is for the treatment of metastatic
melanoma. As a result of encouraging Phase 2 data, we expect to initiate a Phase 3 clinical trial later in 2014 for which Special Protocol Assessment (“SPA”), Fast Track designation, and
Orphan Drug designation have been received.

All shares of CSC common stock (“CSC Common Stock”) and CSC preferred stock (“CSC Preferred Stock”, and collectively with the CSC Common Stock, the “CSC Capital Stock”)
held by each person immediately prior to the effective time of the CSC Merger (the "Effective Time"), were cancelled and converted into the right to receive, in the aggregate (and giving
effect to the liquidation preferences accorded to the CSC Preferred Stock):

(1) An aggregate of 5,329,593 shares of NeoStem common stock (subject to payment of nominal cash in lieu of fractional shares) (the “Closing Merger Consideration”).

(2) if payable after the Closing, certain milestone payments in an amount of up to $90 million in the aggregate, payable in shares of NeoStem Common Stock or cash, in NeoStem’s sole
discretion, in the event of the successful completion of certain milestone events in connection with the CSC business being acquired by NeoStem (the “Milestone Payments”, and
together with the Closing Merger Consideration, the “Merger Consideration”).

Basis of Presentation

In accordance with Article 11-02 of Regulation S-X, the objective of the pro forma financial information is to provide investors with information about the continuing impact of a
particular transaction by illustrating how the acquisition of CSC might have affected NeoStem's historical financial statements if the transaction had been consummated at an earlier time.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of March 31, 2014 is presented as if the acquisition of CSC had occurred on March 31, 2014. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 and three months ended March 31, 2014 are presented as if the acquisition of CSC had occurred on
January 1, 2013.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase price of CSC used in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements is based upon preliminary estimates. The estimates
and assumption are subject to change upon completion of the valuation of the purchase consideration paid, and the valuation of CSC's assets and liabilities. Upon completion of the valuation,
we expect to make additional adjustments, and these valuations could change significantly from those used in the pro forma condensed combined financial statements.

The process for estimating the fair values of in-process research and development, identifiable intangible assets, and certain tangible assets requires the use of significant estimates and
assumptions, including estimating future cash flows, developing appropriate discount rates, and estimating the costs, timing and probability of success to complete in-process
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projects. Transaction costs are not included as a component of consideration transferred. The excess, if any of the purchase price (consideration transferred) over the estimated amounts of
identifiable assets and liabilities of CSC as of the effective date of the acquisition will be allocated to goodwill. The purchase price allocation is subject to finalization of NeoStem’s analysis
of the fair value of the assets and liabilities of CSC as of the effective date of the acquisition. Accordingly, the purchase price allocation in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined
financial statements presented above is preliminary and will be adjusted upon completion of the final valuation. Such adjustments could be material. The final valuation is expected to be
completed as soon as practicable but no later than one year after the consummation of the acquisition.

For purposes of measuring the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (an exit price). Market
participants are assumed to be buyers and sellers in the principal (most advantageous) market for the asset or liability. Additionally, fair value measurements for an asset assume the highest
and best use of that asset by market participants. As a result, NeoStem may be required to value assets at fair value measures that do not reflect NeoStem’s intended use of those assets. Use of
different estimates and judgments could yield different results.

When this transaction is completed, NeoStem will account for it in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 805-10 (“ASC 805-10”). ASC 805-10 provides guidance for
recognizing and measuring identifiable assets and goodwill acquired, liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree. ASC 805-10 also requires that assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in a business combination that arise from contingencies be recognized at fair value if fair value can be reasonably estimated. For the purposes of preparing these unaudited
pro forma condensed combined financial statements, we have established an estimated fair value of the equities and milestones being offered in this transaction as of May 2, 2014. The
preliminary purchase price allocation is based on management’s estimate of acquired tangible and intangible assets and liabilities assumed, and will be adjusted based on the final valuation to
be completed within one year from the acquisition date. The excess of the total purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired, including the estimated fair value of the
identifiable intangible assets, will be allocated to goodwill. We expect that the fair value of current assets and fixed assets will approximate the book value of these assets and that the excess
of purchase price over net deficit will be assigned principally to in-process research and development and Goodwill (if the purchase price exceeds the fair value of tangible and intangible
assets as of the date of merger). The useful life of this intangible asset cannot be determined until the underlying research and development efforts are proved successful or are abandoned if
the clinical studies are not successful, and accordingly, will not be amortized until such time.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information does not purport to be indicative of the financial position and results of operations that NeoStem will obtain in the
future, or that NeoStem would have obtained if the acquisition of CSC had been consummated as of the dates indicated above. The pro forma adjustments are based upon currently available
information and upon certain assumptions that NeoStem believes are reasonable. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information should be read in conjunction with the
historical consolidated financial statements of NeoStem included in its annual reports on Form 10-K and the consolidated financial statements of CSC, included elsewhere in this current
report on Form 8-K.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform CSC's historical amounts to NeoStem’s presentation. These reclassifications primarily relate to reclassifying (i) deposits to prepaid
expenses and other current assets, (ii) accrued vacation, deferred rent - current, and other current liabilities to accrued liabilities, and (iii) deferred rent - long term to other long term
liabilities.

Note 2. Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation

The following table shows our calculation of the purchase price. Under the purchase method of accounting, the total purchase price will be allocated to CSC’s net tangible and intangible
assets and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired will be
recorded as goodwill. The estimated fair values reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information are preliminary and are based on the most recent available
information. The preliminary fair value of the purchase price is comprised of upfront NeoStem equity, and future milestones payments in the event of the successful completion of certain
milestone events. The preliminary fair value of the NeoStem equity is approximately $32.4 million, based on the issuance of approximately 5.3 million shares and NeoStem’s closing price of
$6.08 on May 2, 2014. The preliminary fair value of the milestones is approximately $18.6 million, and is based on probability of success factors of meeting each respective milestone event.
The preliminary fair value of the milestones have been classified as equity and will not be subject to
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remeasurement, since payment may be made in cash or equity at the discretion of NeoStem. The final valuation may result in fair values that are different than the preliminary estimates.

Fair value of NeoStem common stock issued for acquisition of CSC $ 32,403,925 (1)
Fair value of future milestones and royalties 18,639,000  

Total Purchase Price $ 51,042,925  

   

Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation:   
Cash and cash equivalents $ 259,300  
Accounts receivable trade, net 64,200  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 44,600  
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,072,200  
Other assets 201,500  
Goodwill 18,473,525  
In-Process R&D 52,871,000  
Accounts payable (55,600)  
Accrued liabilities (453,800)  
Deferred Tax Liability (21,434,000)  

 $ 51,042,925  

   

(1) Based on the issuance of 5,329,593 shares of NeoStem's common stock, and NeoStem's closing price of $6.08 on May 2, 2014  
   

Pro Forma Adjustments

(a) For the purposes of these pro forma combined financial statements, it is assumed that the carrying values of these assets and liabilities approximate their fair values

(b) Adjustment to reflect estimated fair value of equity issued to acquire all of CSC's equity interests, comprised of the assumed issuance of 5.3 million shares of NeoStem common stock at
$6.08 per share (estimate as of May 2, 2014), and the estimated fair value of future milestone payments paid in the form of additional equity

(c) Adjustment to record acquisition and elimination CSC's equity interests

(d) Adjustments to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on preliminary fair value assessment

(e) Adjustment to record approximately 40% tax effect associated with the recognition of In-Process R&D

(f) Adjustment representing the assumed issuance of an additional 5.3 million NeoStem common shares as of January 1, 2013, and added in full to the weighted average shares outstanding
for 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
California Stem Cell, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Irvine, CA

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of California Stem Cell, Inc. and its subsidiaries which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013
and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of California Stem Cell, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December
31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company needs to raise additional capital to continue its clinical programs, perform on-going research and fund operations. These matters raise substantial doubt about its ability
to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result
from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

/s/ McGladrey LLP

Irvine, CA
February 5, 2014
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California Stem Cell, Inc. and subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

  March 31,  December 31,  December 31,
Assets 2014 2013 2012
 (unaudited)   
Current Assets    
Cash $ 259,300 $ 1,704,200 $ 4,661,100
Accounts receivable 64,200 4,200 5,100
Prepaid expenses 44,600 68,400 59,200
Other receivables — — 122,200
Total current assets 368,100 1,776,800 4,847,600
    

    

Equipment and improvements, net 1,072,200 1,165,900 628,300
Construction in progress — — 712,000
Certificate of deposit 102,600 214,600 211,300
Deposit 98,900 98,900 106,900

Total assets $ 1,641,800 $ 3,256,200 $ 6,506,100

    

    

Liabilities & Shareholders' Equity    
Current Liabilities    
Accounts payable $ 55,600 $ 134,000 $ 44,200
Accrued vacation 154,200 139,000 106,600
Deferred rent 63,000 60,900 52,300
Deferred revenue 526,000 534,500 554,700
Other accrued expenses 299,600 40,800 119,200
Total current liabilities 1,098,400 909,200 877,000
    

Deferred rent, net of current portion 212,900 229,100 290,000
Deferred revenue, net of current portion 419,300 570,700 1,110,200
    

Shareholders' Equity    
Preferred stock - Series D 3,000 3,000 2,200
Preferred stock - Series C 2,300 2,300 2,300
Preferred stock - Series B 1,700 1,700 1,700
Preferred stock - Series A 1,500 1,500 1,500
Common stock 5,600 5,400 5,400
Additional paid-in capital 19,562,100 19,005,700 16,383,900
Accumulated deficit (19,665,000) (17,972,400) (12,668,100)
Total California Stem Cell, Inc. shareholders' equity (88,800) 1,047,200 3,728,900
Noncontrolling interest — 500,000 500,000
Total shareholders' equity (88,800) 1,547,200 4,228,900

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 1,641,800 $ 3,256,200 $ 6,506,100

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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California Stem Cell, Inc. and subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

 Three months ended  Year ended
  March 31,   December 31,
 2014  2013  2013  2012
 (unaudited)  (unaudited)     
Revenues:        
License fees $ 159,900  $ 159,200  $ 559,700  $ 302,700
Subcontract revenue 39,300  —  —  —
Product sales 17,700  15,200  243,000  39,000
Total revenues 216,900  174,400  802,700  341,700
        

Costs and expenses:        
General and administrative 931,200  $ 557,800  $ 2,431,500  $ 1,977,800
Research and development 976,200  871,400  3,678,200  2,592,100
Operating loss (1,690,500)  (1,254,800)  (5,307,000)  (4,228,200)
        

Other income, net 800  1,300  6,700  7,900
Loss before income taxes (1,689,700)  (1,253,500)  (5,300,300)  (4,220,300)
        

State income taxes (2,900)  (3,200)  (4,000)  (800)

Net loss $ (1,692,600)  $ (1,256,700)  $ (5,304,300)  $ (4,221,100)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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California Stem Cell, Inc. and subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

  Series D  Series C  Series B  Series A  Common
Additional

Paid-In  Retained  Noncontrolling
Total

Shareholders'

  Amount  Amount  Amount  Amount  Stock  Capital  Earnings  Interest  Equity

Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 400 $ 2,300 $ 1,700 $ 1,500 $ 5,400 $ 10,392,400 $ (8,447,000) $ 500,000 $ 2,456,700

          

Issuance of Series D 1,800 — — — — 5,944,100 — — 5,945,900
Exercise of stock options — — — — — 18,100 — — 18,100
Stock-based compensation — — — — — 29,300 — — 29,300
Net loss — — — — — — (4,221,100) — (4,221,100)

          

Balance, December 31, 2012 2,200 2,300 1,700 1,500 5,400 16,383,900 (12,668,100) 500,000 4,228,900

          

Issuance of Series D 800 — — — — 2,553,400 — — 2,554,200
Stock-based compensation — — — — — 68,400 — — 68,400
Net loss — — — — — — (5,304,300) — (5,304,300)

          

Balance, December 31, 2013 3,000 2,300 1,700 1,500 5,400 19,005,700 (17,972,400) 500,000 1,547,200

          
China Stem Cell preferred stock exchanged
for common shares (unaudited) — — — — 200 499,800 — (500,000) —
Stock-based compensation (unaudited) — — — — — 56,600 — — 56,600
Net loss (unaudited) — — — — — — (1,692,600) — (1,692,600)

          

Balance March 31, 2014 (unaudited) $ 3,000 $ 2,300 $ 1,700 $ 1,500 $ 5,600 $ 19,562,100 $ (19,665,000) — $ (88,800)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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California Stem Cell, Inc. and subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

 Three months ended  Year ended

  March 31,   December 31,

 2014  2013  2013  2012

 (unaudited)  (unaudited)     
Cash Flows From Operating Activities        
Net loss $ (1,692,600)  $ (1,256,700)  $ (5,304,300)  $ (4,221,100)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities:        
Depreciation 75,300  77,400  310,600  177,400

Loss on sale of equipment 3,400  —  —  —

Stock-based compensation 56,600  15,100  68,400  29,300

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:        
Accounts receivable (60,000)  (4,400)  900  3,700

Prepaid expenses 23,800  17,500  (9,200)  (33,600)

Other assets 112,000  120,100  118,900  (125,800)

Accounts payable (78,400)  40,500  89,800  (112,500)

Accrued vacation 15,200  24,200  32,400  74,100

Other accrued expenses 258,800  (65,200)  (78,400)  104,700

Deferred revenue (159,900)  (159,200)  (559,700)  697,300

Deferred rent (14,100)  (11,900)  (52,300)  106,300

Net cash used in operating activities (1,459,900)  (1,202,600)  (5,382,900)  (3,300,200)

        

Cash Flows From Investing Activities        
Deposits —  —  8,000  (78,600)

Purchases of equipment and improvements —  (120,300)  (136,200)  (66,700)

Construction in progress —  —  —  (712,000)

Proceeds on sale of equipment 15,000  —  —  —

Net cash provided/(used) in investing activities 15,000  (120,300)  (128,200)  (857,300)

        

Cash Flows From Financing Activities        
Proceeds from issuance of Series D Preferred shares —  —  2,554,200  5,945,900

Proceeds from issuance of Common stock —  —  —  18,100

Net cash provided by financing activities —  —  2,554,200  5,964,000

Net decrease in cash (1,444,900)  (1,322,900)  (2,956,900)  1,806,500

        

Cash        
Beginning of period 1,704,200  4,661,100  4,661,100  2,854,600

End of period $ 259,300  $ 3,338,200  $ 1,704,200  $ 4,661,100

        

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information        
Cash payments for:        
State income taxes $ 800  $ 800  $ 800  $ 800
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California Stem Cell, Inc. and subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Nature of Business, Basis of Presentation, Management Plans, and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of business: California Stem Cell, Inc. and subsidiaries (CSC) is a biotechnology company formed in 2005 and is registered as a corporation under the laws of the state of Delaware. The
Company’s operations are principally in Irvine, California, which focuses on the application of high-purity human stem cells in clinical research and therapeutic development to treat life-
threatening medical conditions.  CSC has several clinical programs based on a platform cancer technology capable of treating most bulk tumors, and are set to begin a Phase III clinical trial in
metastatic melanoma.  CSC completed a Phase I clinical trial in liver cancer, and is preparing protocols for clinical trials in glioblastoma multiforme and ovarian cancer.   In addition to the
oncology platform programs, the company is developing stem cell based replacement therapies for two neuromuscular conditions: amyotrophic lateral sclerosis (ALS, or Lou Gehrig’s Disease),
and spinal muscular atrophy (SMA), a devastating hereditary condition.  CSC’s clinical development programs are supported by proprietary manufacturing methods and materials that enable
controlled, large-scale cGMP compliant production of critical, high-purity materials.  

Basis of Presentation: The consolidated financial statements as of and for the three month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 included herein are unaudited. Certain information and
footnote disclosures normally included in the financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America have been omitted. The
unaudited information contained herein has been prepared on the same basis as the Company's audited consolidated financial statements and, in the opinion of the Company's management,
includes all adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of the information for the periods presented. The interim results presented herein are
not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that may be expected for the full fiscal year ending December 31, 2014 or any other future period.

Management plans: The Company’s ability to continue its clinical programs and perform on-going research is contingent upon management’s ability to raise sufficient capital to fund these
activities. Management is investigating various capital raising alternatives including, but not limited to, additional capital issued to accredited investors, debt financing, joint venture arrangements,
and merger and acquisition possibilities. Management believes that the planned actions will enable it to continue as a going concern and position itself to complete its clinical programs.

A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies is as follows:

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of California Stem Cell, Inc. and its wholly owned and majority owned subsidiaries. All material
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates include estimates of the useful lives
and recoverability of long-lived assets, and the fair value of stock-based compensation. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events. The Company has evaluated subsequent events through May 8, 2014, the date on which the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers cash on hand and cash in checking and savings accounts to be cash and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash accounts with a financial institution with funds insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to
$250,000. The Company’s accounts at this institution may, at times, exceed FDIC-insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Revenue recognition: Product sales are recorded upon shipment. Licensing revenue is recognized over the term of the agreement when services are rendered. Royalties are recognized the month
following the close of the quarter. Subcontract revenue is recognized as services are performed. The Company defers any revenue from sales in which payment has been received, but the earnings
process is not complete.

The Company evaluates separate contracts with the same entity that are entered into at or near the same time as a single arrangement
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in considering whether there are one or more units of accounting. The Company evaluates all deliverables in an arrangement to determine whether they represent separate units of accounting.
When delivered items have value to the customer on a standalone basis and delivery or performance of the undelivered item(s) is considered probable and substantially in the control of the
Company, the delivered item is considered a separate unit of accounting and the total arrangement consideration is allocated at the inception of the arrangement to all separate units of accounting
based on their relative selling price. Delivered items that do not qualify as separate units of accounting are combined with the other applicable undelivered items within the arrangement and the
recognition of revenue is determined for those combined deliverables as a single unit of accounting. As further described in Note 5, the Company has entered into a multiple-element contractual
arrangement with a certain customer in which the significant deliverables in the arrangement do not qualify as separate units of accounting since the delivered item is deemed to not have stand-
alone value.
 
Through March 31, 2014, substantially all of the Company’s revenues have been derived from two parties, as described in Note 5.
 
Equipment and improvements: Equipment and improvements are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from
five to seven years. Estimated useful lives of furniture and fixtures and laboratory fixtures are seven years, computer equipment and lab equipment are five years. Leasehold improvements are
stated at cost and amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the remaining lease term. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate fixed
asset classifications and depreciated accordingly when related assets are deemed ready for their intended use and placed in service.

    
Stock-Based Compensation: Stock incentive plans are granted to employees, nonemployee members of the Board of Directors, and consultants. Compensation expense is recognized over the
requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period, based on the grant-date for employees and the earlier of the date at which a performance commitment is reached or the date at which
the nonemployee’s performance is complete. The fair value is estimated using the Black Scholes option pricing valuation model. The Black Scholes model requires management assumptions
including volatility, forfeiture rates and expected option life.

Income taxes: Deferred taxes are provided on a liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards,
and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences.  Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. 
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.

Income tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold to be recognized. Income tax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not threshold are
recognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is met. Previously recognized tax positions that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not threshold are
derecognized in the first subsequent financial reporting period in which that threshold is no longer met. The Company did not record any liability for unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended
2012, 2013, or the three months ended March 31, 2014.

Note 2. Equipment and Improvements

Equipment and improvements, stated at cost, is comprised of the following:

  March 31,  December 31,  December 31,
 2014 2013 2012
Equipment and improvements: (unaudited)   
Computer equipment  $ 30,500  $ 30,500  $ 30,500
Computer software                  3,900                  3,900 0
Furniture and fixtures                32,000               32,000           18,700
Laboratory equipment             331,100             392,300         276,600
Laboratory furnishings                62,700               62,700           62,700
Leasehold improvements          1,391,800          1,391,800         676,500
Total cost          1,852,000          1,913,200     1,065,000
Accumulated depreciation            (779,800)            (747,300)       (436,700)

Equipment and improvements, net  $ 1,072,200  $ 1,165,900  $ 628,300
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Note 3. Shareholders’ Equity

The Company is authorized to issue 15,000,000 shares of Common Stock and 8,455,104 shares of Preferred Stock at $.001 par value per share, consisting of the following as March 31, 2014 and
December 31, 2013 and 2012:
 

   Shares Issued and Outstanding

 Original Issue Price Shares Authorized
March 31,

2014 December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
   (unaudited)   
Series A  $ 1.000     1,500,000       1,500,000       1,500,000          1,500,000
Series B  $ 1.370     1,678,800       1,678,800       1,678,800          1,678,800
Series C  $ 2.173     2,301,000       2,301,000       2,301,000          2,301,000
Series D  $ 3.361     2,975,300       2,975,300       2,975,300          2,215,400
Common Stock   15,000,000       5,632,400       5,482,400          5,482,400

 Cumulative Undeclared Dividends

 
March 31,

 2014 December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
 (unaudited)   
Series A  $ 836,300  $ 806,300  $ 686,300
Series B          885,400         839,400           655,400
Series C       1,403,400     1,303,400           903,400
Series D       1,181,500         981,500           310,100

  $ 4,306,600  $ 3,930,600  $ 2,555,200

Common Stock rights and privileges include the following:

Voting Rights: Each share of Common Stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock held at all meetings of stockholders.

Liquidation Preference: In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, after the full liquidation preference on all outstanding shares of
Preferred Stock has been paid, all remaining funds and assets will be distributed to holders of Common Stock and designated Preferred Stock, pro-rata based on the number of shares held by each
stockholder.

Preferred Stock rights and privileges include the following:

Voting Rights: Each share of Preferred Stock carries a number of votes equal to the number of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon its conversion into Common Stock.

Dividends: Dividends on Preferred Stock are at 8% of the original issue price per year and are payable when declared by the Board. Dividends are not convertible to shares and undeclared
dividends cumulate.

Liquidation Preference: In the event of any liquidation or winding up of the Company, the holders of the Series D Preferred shall be entitled to receive prior to and in preference to the holders of
all other equity of the Company, a per share amount equal to the original issue price plus any cumulative undeclared dividends, whether or not declared. Thereafter, holders of Series C, then
Series B, then Series A receive their original investment in addition to any cumulative undeclared dividends.

After the full liquidation preference on all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock has been paid, all remaining assets will be distributed to holders of Common Stock, Series A Preferred Stock,
Series B Preferred Stock, Series C Preferred Stock and Series
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D Preferred on an as-converted basis until Preferred Stock holders receive payments equal to two times their original purchase price, plus an amount equal to all declared but unpaid dividends.
  
Conversion Rights: The holders of the Preferred Stock shall have the right to convert their shares of Preferred Stock, at any time, into shares of Common Stock at an initial conversion rate for
each series of 1:1. Upon conversion, all preferred shares are surrendered and all rights with respect to the shares cease and terminate. Converted preferred shares are retired and cancelled and may
not be reissued as shares. Under standard antidilution provisions, the conversion rate would be subject to a broad-based weighted average adjustment in the event that the Company issues
additional equity securities at a purchase price less than the applicable conversion price.

Redemption Rights: Preferred Shares are not redeemable except in in accordance with a liquidation event, whereby all outstanding shares are redeemed at the liquidation amount. Any redeemed
or otherwise acquired shares of Preferred Stock are automatically and immediately cancelled and retired and shall not be reissued, sold, or transferred.

Non-controlling Interest: The non-controlling interest represents preferred stock owned in a subsidiary of the Company. The preferred shareholders have no voting rights. Dividends are at 8% of
the original purchase price per year and are payable when declared by the Board. Dividends are not convertible to shares and undeclared dividends cumulate. Cumulative undeclared dividends as
of December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $112,100, and $72,100, respectively. The Company is not obligated to pay the cumulative undeclared dividends except in the event of liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the company. In the event of any liquidation or winding up of the Company, the preferred shareholders shall be entitled to receive prior to and in preference to the
common shareholders, a per share amount equal to the Original Purchase Price plus any cumulative undeclared dividends, whether or not declared. Preferred shares can be converted to common
shares on a 1:1 basis at any time, at which point all rights with respect to the preferred shares are immediately terminated and are no longer deemed outstanding. In February 2014, the preferred
shareholder sold its shares to the Company in exchange for 150,000 shares of common stock of the Company at a par value of $0.001 per share.

2007 Equity Incentive Plan

The Company has an Equity Incentive Plan (the “2007 Plan”), which is administered by the Board. The 2007 Plan provides grants to employees of incentive stock options, or to directors and
consultants of nonstatutory stock options. Under the plan, 1,983,079 shares of Common Stock were reserved for issuance of stock options to selected employees, directors, and consultants.
Options under the Plan expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant and are not transferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. For incentive stock options, the
exercise price shall be equal to 100% of the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price for nonstatutory stock options shall be at least 85% of the
fair market value. Options granted to employees vest at a rate of at least twenty percent (20%) per year over five years from the grant date subject to reasonable conditions such as continued
employment.

A summary of the shares reserved for options outstanding and available for grant under the 2007 Plan is as follows (unaudited):
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   Weighted-  
   Average  Remaining
  Number of  Exercise  Contractual
  Options  Price  Term (years)
    

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 754,000 $ 0.24 4.58
Granted 259,700 $ 0.88 9.22
Exercised — $ — —
Forfeited or expired (13,000) $ 0.50 6.97
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 1,000,700 $ 0.40 6.50
Granted (unaudited) — $ — —
Exercised (unaudited) — $ — —
Forfeited or expired (unaudited) — $ — —

Outstanding at March 31, 2014 (unaudited) 1,000,700 $ 0.40 6.25

    

Vested or expected to vest 992,700 $ — —

    

Exercisable at March 31, 2014 (unaudited) 734,700 $ 0.24 5.61

    

Shares available for grant —   

Unrecognized compensation cost related to stock-based compensation, net of estimated forfeitures, as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, was approximately $161,700 (unaudited) and
$167,200, respectively. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of three years.

The weighted-average fair value of options granted in 2013 and 2012 was $0.72 and $0.32, respectively. The fair value of options granted in 2013 was estimated at the grant date for employees
and the earlier of the date at which the performance commitment was reached or the performance was complete for nonemployees using the Black Scholes option-pricing model with the
following assumptions:

  2013  2012
Expected volatility range  68.7% to 80.0%  67.9% to 68.7%
Risk-free interest rate range  0.85% to 2.02%  0.13% to 1.15%
Expected term range  5 to 7 years  1 to 7.5 years

Expected volatilities were based on the historical volatility of a pool of public companies that management had determined was comparable to that of the Company. The risk-free interest rate was
calculated using the U.S. Treasury yield curves in effect at the time of grant, commensurate with the expected life of the options. The expected term of options granted in 2013 represents the
estimated period of time until exercise and is based on the weighted average of the historical experience of similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual terms, vesting schedules, and
expectations of future employee behavior.

Stock-based compensation expense is recognized based on awards ultimately expected to vest and accordingly, is reduced for estimated forfeitures. At a minimum, the expense reflects the grant-
date fair value of those awards that actually vested in the period. Forfeitures have been estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ
from those estimates. Forfeitures were estimated based on historical experience.

2013 Equity Incentive Plan

The Company has an Equity Incentive Plan (the “2013 Plan”), which is administered by the Board. The 2013 Plan provides grants to employees of incentive stock options, or to directors and
consultants of nonstatutory stock options. Under the plan, 2,500,000 shares of Common Stock were reserved for issuance of stock options to selected employees, directors, and consultants.
Options
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under the Plan expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant and are not transferable except by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. For incentive stock options, the exercise price
shall be equal to 100% of the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The exercise price for nonstatutory stock options shall be at least 85% of the fair market
value. Options granted to employees vest at a rate of at least twenty percent (20%) per year over five years from the grant date subject to reasonable conditions such as continued employment.

A summary of the shares reserved for options outstanding and available for grant under the 2013 Plan is as follows (unaudited):

   Weighted-  
   Average  Remaining
  Number of  Exercise  Contractual
  Options  Price  Term (years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 — $ — —
Granted 53,300 $ 0.90 9.74
Exercised — $ — —
Forfeited or expired — $ — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 53,300 $ 0.90 9.74
Granted (unaudited) 571,300 $ 1.18 9.75
Exercised (unaudited) — $ — —
Forfeited or expired (unaudited) — $ — —

Outstanding at March 31, 2014 (unaudited) 624,600 $ 1.16 8.92

    

Vested or expected to vest 607,500 $ 1.16 9.73

    

Exercisable at March 31, 2014 (unaudited) 6,700 $ 0.90 9.73

    

Shares available for grant 1,875,400   

Unrecognized compensation cost related to stock-based compensation, net of estimated forfeitures, as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, was approximately $457,200 (unaudited) and
$43,800, respectively. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of three years.

The weighted-average fair value of options granted during the three month period ended March 31, 2014 was $0.82 (unaudited), and year ended December 31, 2013 was $0.90. The fair value of
options granted in 2014 and 2013 was estimated at the grant date for employees and the earlier of the date at which the performance commitment was reached or the performance was complete
for nonemployees using the Black Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

  2014 2013
 (unaudited)  
Expected volatility range 75% 80%
Risk-free interest rate range 1.72% to 2.41% 2.02%
Expected term range  5 to 7 years 7 years

Expected volatilities were based on the historical volatility of a pool of public companies that management had determined was comparable to that of the Company. The risk-free interest rate was
calculated using the U.S. Treasury yield curves in effect at the time of grant, commensurate with the expected life of the options. The expected term of options granted in 2014 and 2013
represents the estimated period of time until exercise and is based on the weighted average of the historical experience of similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual terms, vesting
schedules, and expectations of future employee behavior.

Stock-based compensation expense is recognized based on awards ultimately expected to vest and accordingly, is reduced for estimated forfeitures. At a minimum, the expense reflects the grant-
date fair value of those awards that actually vested in the period. Forfeitures have been estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures
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differ from those estimates. Forfeitures were estimated based on historical experience.

Note 4. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 (unaudited), and the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 consisted of minimum state taxes.

The Company has certain temporary book to tax differences and loss carryforwards that give rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets relate primarily to net operating loss
carryforwards, credit carryforwards and nondeductible accruals. A full valuation allowance has been placed on the balance of net deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2014, December 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012 as the ability to realize the value of such assets is uncertain. Net operating loss carryforwards at March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 total approximately $15 million
(unaudited) each for federal and state purposes, which begin to expire in 2026. The Company also has research and development tax credit carryforwards for federal and state of approximately
$400,000 each. Federal credits begin to expire in 2026 and California credits carryforward indefinitely.

Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382 and similar provisions, the Company’s ability to use net operating loss and credit carryforwards to offset current net income may be limited if the
Company had a 50 percent change in ownership. The Company has not completed a Section 382 analysis to determine if a change in ownership has occurred. Until such analysis is completed,
there are no assurances that the existing net operating loss or credit carryforwards are subject to significant limitation.    

Note 5. License and Agreements

In April 2010, the Company entered into a license agreement with an unrelated party to develop and commercialize high purity cells differentiated from human embryonic stem cell (hESC) lines.
Under the terms of the agreement, the unrelated party was granted the exclusive worldwide license to manufacture, distribute and sell such cell lines (in the formats of multi-well plates or frozen
vials) and growth media. On the same date, the Company also entered into a supply agreement whereby the Company would exclusively manufacture and supply media, plates and vials to the
unrelated party. In connection with the license agreement, the Company received an upfront non-refundable license payment of $500,000 for the exclusive license and another $500,000 upon the
unrelated party’s first commercial sale of the Company’s plates. Both agreements have initial terms of 7 years, with automatic 3-year renewal periods unless otherwise terminated under the terms
of the agreements. The license payments were recorded as deferred revenue upon receipt and are being recognized upon delivery of the licensed products based on the units of product delivered
over management’s estimate of total supply expected over the term of the agreement. License fees revenues recognized during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 was
approximately $71,700 (unaudited) and $71,000 (unaudited), respectively, and product revenue recognized for shipment of licensed product amounted to approximately $12,500 (unaudited) and
$9,600 (unaudited), respectively. License fees revenues recognized during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were approximately $206,800 and $155,700, respectively, and product
revenue recognized for shipment of licensed product amounted to approximately $27,500 and $20,400, respectively. As of March 31, 2014, December 31, 2013, and December 31, 2012, deferred
revenue associated with this license was approximately $533,500 (unaudited), $605,200, and $812,000, respectively, which is included in deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The Company also receives royalties on future product sales made by the unrelated party. During the three months ended March 2014 and 2013, royalty revenue recognized was
approximately $1,800 (unaudited) and $1,000 (unaudited), respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, royalty revenue recognized was approximately $4,700 and $2,700,
respectively.

In August 2010, the Company entered into an arrangement with an unrelated Chinese-based entity for the purpose of cooperation between them on a sole and exclusive basis in the territory of
China, Hong Kong, Macau, and Taiwan with respect to stem cell research and development, clinical trials, treatment, distribution, and marketing. In July 2012, the Company entered into limited
use agreements with this unrelated entity to develop motor neuron progenitors and for the use of autophagic tumor cells and treatments. The agreements have an initial term of 3 years, with
automatic 2-year renewal periods unless otherwise terminated under the terms of the agreements. In connection with the agreement, the Company received a one-time license fee of $1 million,
which was recorded as deferred revenue upon receipt and is being recognized as revenue ratably over the term of the license agreement of three years. License fees revenues recognized during the
three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $88,200 (unaudited) per quarter, and during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 was approximately $352,900 and
$147,000, respectively. Deferred revenue was approximately $411,800 (unaudited), $500,000, and $852,900 at March 31, 2014, December 31, 2013, and December 31, 2012, respectively.

Note 6. Transfer and Royalty Agreement
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In September 2011, an unrelated party transferred its dendritic cancer program including investigational new drug (IND) studies to the Company, which included all rights in data, discoveries,
inventions, technical knowledge, information and rights, improvements, methods, designs, specifications, and other know-how. All rights to registered and unregistered intellectual property rights
were also transferred to the Company. No upfront fee was required of or paid by the Company, however, a 2% royalty will be paid on net sales of any commercially marketed product developed
from the program. Royalty payments would continue until the 15th anniversary of when the first royalty payment is due. As of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, no commercial sales of the
product developed by the program had occurred.

In connection to the dendritic cancer program, the unrelated party transferred to the company human tissue samples stored at the facility, records related to the storage and preservation of the
samples, and equipment used in the storage of the samples. Written storage contract agreements with the patients were also transferred to the Company.

Note 7. Subcontract Revenue

In March 2014, the Company entered into a subcontract agreement with an unrelated third party. The period of performance for this subcontract is twelve months and the total estimated cost for
performance is approximately $483,100 (unaudited). Under the terms of the agreement, the Company acts as the subcontractor and as such, bills the unrelated third party for monthly services
provided. Subcontract revenue recognized in the three months ending March 31, 2014 was approximately $39,300 (unaudited).

Note 8. Commitment and Contingencies

401(k) Plan

The Company sponsors a defined-contribution savings plan covering all eligible employees (“the Plan”). Subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations, participating employees can contribute
up to 100% of eligible compensation on a pre-tax basis, or elect to make Roth elective deferrals into the Plan, which are made on an after-tax basis. The Company matches employee contributions
100% up to 4% of eligible compensation. Employer contributions during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 were approximately $20,300 (unaudited) and $18,600 (unaudited),
respectively, and during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 were approximately $77,300 and $63,200, respectively.

Operating Lease

In June 2011, the Company entered into a lease for office space of approximately 8,000 rentable square feet in Irvine, CA with an initial lease term of 52 months. The lease required the Company
to provide the landlord with a letter of credit as a security deposit. The Company provided the bank that issued the letter of credit on its behalf, a security deposit of $203,000 to guarantee the
letter of credit. This was included in the certificate of deposit on the consolidated balance sheet. The lessor granted the Company a tenant improvement allowance of $204,000, which was
recognized as a lease incentive and recorded as a reduction to rental expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In July 2012, the Company extended its lease for an additional 3,000 rentable square feet and an additional 65 months from the date of the amended lease agreement. The lessor granted the
Company a tenant improvement allowance of $117,000 for the expansion premises, which was recognized as a lease incentive and recorded as a reduction to rental expense on a straight-line basis
over the remaining lease term.

Rent expense was approximately $56,600 (unaudited) and $59,700 (unaudited) during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and $238,600 and $177,000 during the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company’s future minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2013 is reflected in the following table:

  

Years Ending December 31,   Amount
   
2014  $ 299,500
2015  307,900
2016  315,600
2017  310,900

  $ 1,233,900
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Note 9. Subsequent Events (unaudited)

Joint Venture and License Agreement Termination

On April 1, 2014, the Company terminated the joint venture agreement and license agreements with the unrelated Chinese-based entity mentioned in Note 5. As such, the recognition of the
deferred license fee revenue was accelerated and recognized in full. On the same date, the Company entered into an exclusive license agreement with this unrelated Chinese-based entity to
develop and commercialize hepatocellular carcinoma stem cells in the territory of China, Hong Kong, Macau, and Taiwan. The agreement has an initial term of seven years. In connection with the
agreement, the Company will receive a license fee of $30,000,000, payable as follows: $1,000,000 due on or before the first patient is enrolled in the Phase II clinical trial, $5,000,000 due on or
before the date that is six months after the date on which interim data from the Phase III clinical trial becomes available, $5,000,000 due upon receipt of regulatory approval of a product in the
territory, and $30,000,000 less the amount of license fees previously paid on the earliest to occur of a first commercial sale or any sublicense of the agreement to any third party. The Company
will also be entitled to receive 50% royalties of net income, and a quarterly reimbursement for operating expenses up to $375,000. For any approved sublicenses, the Company will also receive
50% of any and all payments received from the sublicensee. The Company also entered into an exclusive license agreement with this unrelated Chinese-based entity to use the motor neuron
progenitor cells in research and development, clinical trials, distribution, marketing, treatment of certain diseases and conditions comprised of dermatology and wound healing, neurological
diseases and conditions, spinal cord injury, oncology, infectious diseases, ophthalmology, inflammation, and cardiovascular disease in the territory of China, Hong Kong, Macau, and Taiwan on
the same date. The agreement has an initial term of three years, with automatic 2-year renewal periods unless otherwise terminated under the terms of the agreements. In connection with the
agreement, the Company will receive 20% royalties of net sales, payable within 30 days of the end of each quarter.

NeoStem Merger

On April 11, 2014, NeoStem, a Delaware corporation, and the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”), among NeoStem, the Company, NBS
Acquisition Sub I, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Subco”), NBS Acquisition Sub II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Subco II”), and Jason Livingston, solely in his capacity as the
Company's stockholder representative (together with his permitted successors, the “CSC Representative”). On May 8, 2014, pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, (i) Subco merged
with and into the Company (the “Merger”), with the Company surviving the Merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of NeoStem, and (ii) the Company then merged with and into Subco II (the
“Subco II Merger”, and collectively with the Merger, the “Mergers”).

All shares of the Company's common stock and preferred stock held by each person immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger were cancelled and converted into the right to receive, in
the aggregate (and giving effect to the liquidation preferences accorded to the preferred stock):

(1) An aggregate of 5,329,593 shares of NeoStem common stock; and

(2) if payable, certain milestone payments in an amount of up to $90 million in the aggregate, payable in shares of NeoStem common stock or cash, in NeoStem’s sole discretion, in the event
of the successful completion of certain milestone events in connection with the Company's business being acquired by NeoStem.

Stock Options

In connection with the merger discussed above and pursuant to the terms of the 2007 and 2013 Equity Incentive Plans and agreement, all stock options issued and outstanding as of the date of the
merger were accelerated and exercised. The Merger Agreement required all option holders to enter into cancellation agreements in exchange for the right to receive a portion of the Merger
Consideration.
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Exhibit 10.1
 

ESCROW AGREEMENT

THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of May 8, 2014, by and among NeoStem, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Parent”), California Stem Cell,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (“CSC”), Fortis Advisors LLC, solely in its capacity as the stockholders representative (the “CSC Representative”), and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust
Company, a New York corporation (the “Escrow Agent”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Parent, NBS Acquistion Sub I, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent (“Subco”), NBS Acquisition Sub II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company and a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent (“Subco II”), CSC and the CSC Representative have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of April 11, 2014 (the “Merger
Agreement”), pursuant to which, among other things, (a) Subco will merge with and into the CSC (the “First Merger”), with CSC surviving the First Merger, and (b) as soon as practicable
thereafter, CSC, as the surviving company of the First Merger, will merge with and into Subco II (the “Second Merger” and together with the First Merger, the “Mergers”), with Subco II surviving
the Second Merger as the Surviving Company;

WHEREAS, the Merger Agreement contemplates the establishment of an Escrow Account for the deposit by Parent of a portion of the Merger Consideration to be held in escrow until
the Termination Date, and to be subsequently released and distributed to the CSC Representative for distribution to the CSC Securityholders;

WHEREAS, the Merger Agreement contemplates the establishment of a CSC Expenses Escrow Account for the deposit by Parent of a portion of the Merger Consideration to be held in
escrow until the first anniversary of the Closing Date (as defined in Merger Agreement), and to be subsequently released and distributed to the CSC Representative for distribution to the CSC
Securityholders subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Jason Livingston has resigned in his capacity as the initial CSC Representative and pursuant to Section 8.07(c) of the Merger Agreement, the holders of the majority in
interest of the Escrow Amount have appointed Fortis Advisors LLC to fill such vacancy and serve as the CSC Representative in connection with all matters under this Agreement and the Merger
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and undertakings contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Defined Terms.

1.1 Capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Merger Agreement.

1.2 As used in this Agreement, “Escrowed Shares” refers to the 1,332,399 shares of Parent Common Stock being issued and deposited into the Escrow Account pursuant to
Sections 3.04(b)(v) and (vii) of the Merger Agreement.

1.3 As used in this Agreement, “CSC Expenses Escrowed Shares” refers to the 252,454 shares of Parent Common Stock being issued and deposited into the CSC Expenses
Escrow Account pursuant to Section 3.04(b)(iii) of the Merger Agreement.

Section 2. Escrow and Indemnification.

2.1 Appointment of Escrow Agent; Shares and Stock Powers Placed in Escrow. Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company is hereby appointed to serve as Escrow Agent
hereunder, and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company hereby agrees to serve as Escrow Agent hereunder. In accordance with the terms, conditions and procedures of Sections 3.04, 3.05
and 8.05 of the Merger Agreement, promptly at or immediately following the First Effective Time, (a) Parent shall issue certificates for (i) the Escrowed Shares registered in the name of the
Escrow Agent evidencing 1,332,399 shares of Parent Common Stock to be held in escrow under this Agreement, and shall deliver or cause such certificates to be delivered to the Escrow Agent,
and (ii) the CSC Expenses Escrowed Shares registered in the name of the Escrow Agent evidencing 252,454 shares of Parent



Common Stock to be held in escrow under this Agreement, and shall deliver or cause such certificates to be delivered to the Escrow Agent, and (b) the CSC Representative shall deliver to the
Escrow Agent an “assignment separate from certificate” (“Stock Power”) endorsed by it in blank.

2.2 Escrow Account. The Escrow Agent agrees to accept delivery of (i) the Escrowed Shares and to hold the Escrowed Shares in a separate escrow account (such account, the
“Escrow Account”), subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Merger Agreement, and (ii) the CSC Expenses Escrowed Shares and to hold the CSC Expenses Escrowed
Shares in a separate account (such account, the “CSC Expenses Escrow Account”), subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Merger Agreement.

2.3 Voting of Escrow Shares. The Escrow Agent, as record owner of the Escrowed Shares and the CSC Expenses Escrowed Shares, shall exercise all voting rights with respect
to such Escrowed Shares and CSC Expenses Escrowed Shares in accordance with Section 3.05 of the Merger Agreement, upon receipt of written instructions from the CSC Representative on
behalf of the CSC Securityholders. In the absence of such instructions, the Escrow Agent shall vote the Escrowed Shares and the CSC Expenses Escrowed Shares as directed by Parent. The
Escrow Agent shall deliver to the CSC Representative any proxy materials or other documents relating to the Escrowed Shares or the CSC Expenses Escrowed Shares received from time to time
by the Escrow Agent from Parent but shall not be obligated to distribute such documents to the CSC Securityholders.

2.4 Reports. Upon the request of either Parent or the CSC Representative, the Escrow Agent shall provide a statement to the requesting party that describes any deposit,
distribution or investment activity or deductions with respect to shares of Parent Common Stock held in the Escrow Account or the CSC Expenses Escrow Account, as applicable, in addition to
quarterly account statements from the Escrow Agent.

2.5 Dividends, Etc. Parent and the CSC Representative, on behalf of each of the CSC Securityholders, agree that any shares of Parent Common Stock or other property
(including ordinary cash dividends) distributable or issuable (whether by way of dividend, stock split or otherwise) in respect of or in exchange for any Escrowed Shares or CSC Expenses
Escrowed Shares (including pursuant to or as a part of a merger, consolidation, acquisition of property or stock, reorganization or liquidation involving Parent) shall not be distributed or issued to
the beneficial owners of such Escrowed Shares or CSC Expenses Escrowed Shares, as applicable, but rather shall be distributed or issued to and held by the Escrow Agent in the Escrow Account
or the CSC Expenses Escrow Account, as applicable. Any securities or other property received by the Escrow Agent in respect of any Escrowed Shares or CSC Expenses Escrowed Shares held in
escrow as a result of any stock split or combination of shares of Parent Common Stock, payment of a stock dividend or other stock distribution in or on shares of Parent Common Stock, or change
of Parent Common Stock into any other securities pursuant to or as a part of a merger, consolidation, acquisition of property or stock, reorganization or liquidation involving Parent, or otherwise,
shall be held by the Escrow Agent as part of the Escrow Account or the CSC Expenses Escrow Account, as applicable.

2.6 Transferability. Except as expressly provided for herein or by operation of law, the interests of the CSC Securityholders in the Escrow Account or the CSC Expenses
Escrow Account shall not, in either case, be assignable or transferable.

2.7 Trust Fund. The Escrow Account shall be held as trust funds and shall not be subject to any lien, attachment, trustee process or any other judicial process of any creditor of
Escrow Agent, any CSC Securityholder or Parent, respectively, or of any party hereto. The Escrow Agent shall hold and safeguard (i) the Escrow Account until the Termination Date (as defined
in Section 3.3 of this Agreement), and (ii) the CSC Expenses Escrow Account until the first anniversary of the Closing Date.

Section 3. Release of Escrow Shares.

3.1 General. (a) Within ten (10) calendar days after (i) thirty (30) calendar days from the date that the Escrow Agent receives written instructions from the Parent (a “Parent
Notice”) that have been concurrently delivered by Parent to the CSC Representative and have not been objected to by the CSC Representative within such thirty (30) calendar day period, (ii) joint
written instructions from Parent and the CSC Representative (“Joint Instructions”) or (iii) a final and non-appealable order issued by a court of competent jurisdiction (a “Court Order”) relating to
the release of (x) any Escrowed Shares from the Escrow Account or (y) any CSC Expenses Escrowed Shares from the CSC Expenses Escrow Account, or (b) in accordance with Section 3.3
hereof with respect to the Escrowed Shares only, the Escrow Agent shall release or cause to be released any such Escrowed Shares or CSC Expenses Escrowed Amounts, as applicable, and any
other amounts from the Escrow Account or CSC Expenses Escrowed Account, as applicable, in the amounts, to the Persons and in the manner set forth in such Parent Notice, Joint Instructions,
Court Order or, with respect to the Escrowed Shares only, as provided in Section 3.3 of this Agreement, as applicable. If a Notice of Claim is sent under Section 8.05 of the Merger Agreement and
the CSC Representative does not provide a Notice of Objection as provided in Section 8.05 within thirty (30) calendar days, the Escrow Agent shall make the distribution requested by the Notice
of Claim without action by the CSC Representative.



3.2 Distributions. For purposes of this Agreement, all distributions to the CSC Securityholders shall be made based on the Consideration Spreadsheet, which is attached hereto
as Schedule 1, except that no fractional shares shall be issued, and all amounts released from the Escrow Account or the CSC Expenses Escrow Account and distributed by the Escrow Agent to
the CSC Securityholders shall be rounded up or down pursuant to Section 3.04(i) of the Merger Agreement. The parties to this Agreement hereby acknowledge that notwithstanding Section
8.05(b)(ii) of the Merger Agreement, the CSC Representative shall have no obligation to distribute amounts released from the Escrow Account to the CSC Securityholders, provided that this shall
not limit the CSC Representative’s right to reimbursement from the Escrow Account pursuant to Section 8.07(d) of the Merger Agreement.

3.3 Release of the Escrowed Shares. Promptly following the Termination Date, the Escrow Agent shall release and distribute to the CSC Securityholders (in accordance with
the Consideration Spreadsheet) all shares of Parent Common Stock in the Escrow Account that are not subject to an unresolved Notice of Claim. The parties to this Agreement hereby
acknowledge that notwithstanding Section 8.05(b)(ii) of the Merger Agreement, the CSC Representative shall have no obligation to distribute amounts released from the Escrow Account to the
CSC Securityholders, provided that this shall not limit the CSC Representative’s right to reimbursement from the Escrow Account pursuant to Section 8.07(d) of the Merger Agreement.

3.4 Distributions. Whenever a distribution of a number of shares of Parent Common Stock is to be made pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Escrow Agent shall
requisition the appropriate number of shares from Parent’s stock transfer agent, delivering to the transfer agent the appropriate stock certificates accompanied by the respective Stock Powers,
together with the specific instructions, as appropriate. Within five (5) Business Days prior to the date the Escrow Agent is required to make a distribution of shares of Parent Common Stock or
other property (including ordinary cash dividends) to the CSC Securityholders pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Escrow Agent shall provide the CSC Representative and the Parent
with a notice specifying that a distribution will be made. The Escrow Agent shall make the appropriate distributions to the Persons listed on Schedule 1 in accordance with the terms hereof. Any
distributions to Parent pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be made to the address set forth in Schedule 2 hereto.

3.5 Disputes. All disputes, claims, or controversies arising out of or relating to Section 3 of this Agreement that are not resolved by mutual agreement between Parent and the
CSC Representative shall be resolved solely and exclusively as set forth in Section 8.05 of the Merger Agreement by the CSC Representative and the Parent.

Section 4. Fees and Expenses.

The Escrow Agent shall be entitled to receive, from time to time, fees in accordance with Schedule 3. In accordance with Schedule 3, the Escrow Agent will also be entitled to
reimbursement for reasonable and documented out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Escrow Agent in the performance of its duties hereunder and the execution and delivery of this Agreement.
All such fees and expenses shall be paid by Parent.

Section 5. Limitation of Escrow Agent’s Liability.

5.1 The Escrow Agent undertakes to perform such duties as are specifically set forth in this Agreement only and shall have no duty under any other agreement or document, and
no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Agreement against the Escrow Agent. The Escrow Agent shall incur no liability with respect to any action taken by it or for any inaction
on its part in reliance upon any notice, direction, instruction, consent, statement or other document reasonably believed by it, and in all instances in good faith, to be genuine and duly authorized,
nor for any other action or inaction except for its own gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct. In all questions arising under this Agreement, the Escrow Agent may rely on the advice of
counsel, and for anything done, omitted or suffered in good faith by the Escrow Agent based upon such advice, the Escrow Agent shall not be liable to anyone. In no event shall the Escrow Agent
be liable for incidental, punitive or consequential damages.

5.2 Parent and the CSC Representative, acting on behalf of the CSC Securityholders hereby agree to indemnify the Escrow Agent and its officers, directors, employees and
agents for, and hold it and them harmless against, any loss, liability or expense incurred without gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct on the part of the Escrow Agent, arising out of or
in connection with the Escrow Agent’s carrying out its duties hereunder. This right of indemnification shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the resignation of the Escrow Agent.

Section 6. Termination.



This Agreement shall terminate upon the release by the Escrow Agent of the final amounts held in the Escrow Account and the CSC Expenses Account in accordance with Section 3 of
this Agreement.

Section 7. Successor Escrow Agent.

7.1 In the event the Escrow Agent becomes unavailable or unwilling to continue as escrow agent under this Agreement, the Escrow Agent may resign and be discharged from its
duties and obligations hereunder by giving its written resignation to the parties to this Agreement. Such resignation shall take effect not less than sixty (60) calendar days after it is given to all the
other parties hereto. In such event, Parent may appoint a successor Escrow Agent (acceptable to the CSC Representative, acting reasonably). If Parent fails to appoint a successor Escrow Agent
within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving the Escrow Agent’s written resignation, the Escrow Agent shall have the right to apply to a court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of
a successor Escrow Agent. The successor Escrow Agent shall execute and deliver to the Escrow Agent an instrument accepting such appointment, and the successor Escrow Agent shall, without
further acts, be vested with all the estates, property rights, powers and duties of the predecessor Escrow Agent as if originally named as Escrow Agent herein. The Escrow Agent shall act in
accordance with written instructions from Parent and the CSC Representative as to the transfer of the Escrow Account and the CSC Expenses Escrow Account to a successor Escrow Agent.

7.2 The Escrow Agent may be removed (with or without cause) at any time upon mutual agreement by Parent and the CSC Representative, provided that the Escrow Agent
receives no less than thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice of such removal. Upon the effectiveness of such removal, the Escrow Agent shall have no further obligation hereunder except to
hold the Escrow Account and the CSC Expenses Escrow Account as depositary. The Escrow Agent shall refrain from taking any action until it receives joint written instructions from Parent and
the CSC Representative designating a successor escrow agent. The Escrow Agent shall deliver the Escrow Account and the CSC Expenses Escrow Account to such successor escrow agent in
accordance with such instructions.

Section 8. CSC Representative.

Unless and until Parent and the Escrow Agent shall have received written notice of the appointment of a successor CSC Representative, Parent and the Escrow Agent shall be entitled to
rely on, and shall be fully protected in relying on, the power and authority of the CSC Representative to act on behalf of the CSC Securityholders.

Section 9. Miscellaneous.

9.1 Attorneys’ Fees. In any action at law or suit in equity to enforce or interpret this Agreement or the rights of any of the parties hereunder, the prevailing party in such action
or suit shall be entitled to receive a reasonable sum for its attorneys’ fees and all other reasonable costs and expenses incurred in such action or suit.

9.2 Notices. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be delivered to any party under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly
delivered, given and received when delivered (by hand, by registered mail, by courier or express delivery service or by facsimile) to the address or facsimile telephone number set forth beneath
the name of such party below (or to such other address or facsimile telephone number as such party shall have specified in a written notice given to the other parties hereto):

if to Parent:

NeoStem, Inc.
420 Lexington Avenue, Suite 350
New York, NY 10170
Facsimile: (646) 514-7787
Attention: Catherine M. Vaczy, General Counsel

with a copy, which shall not constitute notice, to:

Lowenstein Sandler LLP
65 Livingston Avenue
Roseland, NJ 07068
Facsimile: (973) 597-2565



Attention: Alan Wovsaniker and Ethan Skerry

if to the CSC Representative:

Fortis Advisors LLC
Attention: Notice Department
Facsimile: (858) 408-1843
Email: notices@fortisrep.com

if to the Escrow Agent:

Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company
17 Battery Place, 8th Floor
New York, NY 10004
Attention: John W. Comer, Jr.
Facsimile: (212) 616-7615

Notwithstanding the foregoing, notices addressed to the Escrow Agent shall be effective only upon receipt, which shall be promptly confirmed by Escrow Agent. If any notice or other document
is required to be delivered to the Escrow Agent and any other Person, the Escrow Agent may assume without inquiry that notice or other document was received by such other Person on the date
on which it was received by the Escrow Agent.

9.3 Headings. The bold-faced headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only, shall not be deemed to be a part of this Agreement and shall not be
referred to in connection with the construction or interpretation of this Agreement.

9.4 Counterparts and Exchanges by Facsimile or Other Electronic Transmission. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall constitute an
original and all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one agreement. The exchange of a fully executed Agreement (in counterparts or otherwise) by facsimile or other means of
electronic transmission shall be sufficient to bind the parties to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9.5 Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial.

(a) This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York, regardless of the laws that might otherwise govern under
applicable principles of conflicts of laws thereof. Subject to Section 3.5 of this Agreement, in any action between the parties arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement: (a) each of the parties irrevocably and unconditionally consents and submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the state and federal courts located in
the State of New York; (b) if any such action is commenced in a state court, then, subject to applicable law, no party shall object to the removal of such action to any federal court located in the
State of New York; and (c) each of the parties irrevocably waives the right to trial by jury.

(b) EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR
COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED ON CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHERWISE) ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE ACTIONS OF ANY PARTY
HERETO IN NEGOTIATION, ADMINISTRATION, PERFORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT HEREOF.

9.6 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of each of the parties hereto and each of their respective permitted successors
and assigns, if any. No direct or indirect interest in the Escrow Account or the CSC Expenses Escrow Account or the shares of Parent Common Stock held in the Escrow Account or the CSC
Expenses Escrow Account may be sold, assigned, transferred or pledged except by operation of law.

9.7 Waiver. No failure on the part of any Person to exercise any power, right, privilege or remedy under this Agreement, and no delay on the part of any Person in exercising
any power, right, privilege or remedy under this Agreement, shall operate as a waiver of such power, right, privilege or remedy; and no single or partial exercise of any such power, right, privilege
or remedy shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof or of any other power, right, privilege or remedy. No Person shall be deemed to have waived any claim arising out of this
Agreement, or any power, right, privilege or remedy under this Agreement, unless the waiver of such claim, power, right, privilege or remedy is expressly set forth in a written instrument duly
executed and



delivered on behalf of such Person; and any such waiver shall not be applicable or have any effect except in the specific instance in which it is given.

9.8 Amendment. This Agreement may not be amended, modified, altered or supplemented other than by means of a written instrument duly executed and delivered on behalf of
Parent, the CSC Representative and the Escrow Agent; provided, however, that any amendment executed and delivered by the CSC Representative shall be deemed to have been approved by and
duly executed and delivered by all of the CSC Securityholders.

9.9 Severability. Any term or provision of this Agreement that is invalid or unenforceable in any situation in any jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the
remaining terms and provisions hereof or the validity or enforceability of the offending term or provision in any other situation or in any other jurisdiction. If the final judgment of a court of
competent jurisdiction declares that any term or provision hereof is invalid or unenforceable, the parties hereto agree that the court making such determination shall have the power to limit the
term or provision, to delete specific words or phrases, or to replace any invalid or unenforceable term or provision with a term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes closest to
expressing the intention of the invalid or unenforceable term or provision, and this Agreement shall be enforceable as so modified. In the event such court does not exercise the power granted to it
in the prior sentence, the parties hereto agree to replace such invalid or unenforceable term or provision with a valid and enforceable term or provision that will achieve, to the extent possible, the
economic, business and other purposes of such invalid or unenforceable term.

9.10 Parties in Interest. Except as expressly provided herein, none of the provisions of this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to provide any rights or remedies to any
Person other than the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, if any.

9.11 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Merger Agreement set forth the entire understanding of the parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof and supersede all
prior agreements and understandings among or between any of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof.

9.12 Cooperation. The CSC Representative on behalf of the CSC Securityholders and Parent agree to cooperate fully with each other and the Escrow Agent and to execute and
deliver such further documents, certificates, agreements, stock powers and other instruments and to take such other actions as may be reasonably requested by Parent, the CSC Representative or
the Escrow Agent to evidence or reflect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out the intent and purposes of this Agreement.

9.13 Construction.

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, whenever the context requires: the singular number shall include the plural, and vice versa; the masculine gender shall include the
feminine and neutral genders; the feminine gender shall include the masculine and neutral genders; and the neutral gender shall include masculine and feminine genders.

(b) The parties hereto agree that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be applied in the construction
or interpretation of this Agreement.

(c) As used in this Agreement, the words “include” and “including,” and variations thereof, shall not be deemed to be terms of limitation, but rather shall be deemed to be
followed by the words “without limitation.”

(d) Except as otherwise indicated, all references in this Agreement to “Sections,” “Schedules” and “Exhibits” are intended to refer to Sections of this Agreement,
Schedules to this Agreement and Exhibits to this Agreement.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank][Escrow Agreement Signature Page]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day and year first above written.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day and year first above written.

 

NEOSTEM, INC.
 /s/ Robin L. Smith
Name: Robin L. Smith, M.D., M.B.A.
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
 

CALIFORNIA STEM CELL, INC.

 /s/ Hans Keirstead
Name: Hans Keirstead
Title:

CSC REPRESENTATIVE

By: /s/ Ryan Simkin
Name: Fortis Advisors LLC

CONTINENTAL STOCK &
TRANSFER COMPANY

Name: John W. Comer, Jr.
Title: Vice President



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

NeoStem, Inc.
New York, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements of NeoStem, Inc. on Forms S-3 (File No. 333-145988, File No. 333-173853, File No. 333-173855, File No.
333-183542, File No. 333-183543, File No. 333-176673, File No. 333-185346 and File No. 333-188486) and on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-107438, File No. 333-144265, File No. 333-159282, File
No. 333-162733, File No. 333-173854, File No. 333-181365, File No. 333-184927 and File No. 333-191572) of our report dated February 5, 2014, related to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of California Stem Cell, Inc. and subsidiaries as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, included in this Current Report on Form 8-K of NeoStem, Inc. dated
May 8, 2014.

/s/ MCGLADREY LLP

Irvine, California
May 8, 2014



Exhibit 99.1

NeoStem Announces Closing of Acquisition of California Stem Cell, Inc. and First Quarter 2014 Financial Results

61% Revenue Increase Over First Quarter 2013

NEW YORK, May 8, 2014 (GLOBE NEWSWIRE) -- NeoStem, Inc. (Nasdaq:NBS) ("NeoStem" or the "Company"), a leader in the emerging cellular therapy industry, today announced first

quarter 2014 financial results as well as the closing of the Company’s acquisition of California Stem Cell, Inc. (“CSC”), an Irvine, California based biotechnology company. Strategic acquisitions

that leverage the Company’s strong development, regulatory and manufacturing expertise have been the cornerstone of NeoStem’s growth and the basis for providing value to shareholders.

“We are pleased to see positive revenue growth in this quarter over first quarter 2013 and to report that, as of March 31, 2014, we had an ending cash balance of over $41 million,” said Dr. Robin

L. Smith, Chairman and CEO of NeoStem. “Coupled with our best in class manufacturing capability, the stage is set for us to realize meaningful clinical development and manufacturing

efficiencies, further positioning NeoStem to lead the cell therapy industry and achieve our goal of delivering transformative cell based therapies to the market to help patients suffering from life-

threatening medical conditions.”

California Stem Cell Acquisition

Melapuldencel-T, developed by CSC and now NeoStem’s most advanced product candidate and foundation for its Targeted Immunotherapy Program in oncology, is a late stage novel proprietary

cancer cell therapy. NeoStem plans to initiate, before the end of 2014, a pivotal Phase 3 trial of Melapuldencel-T, an autologous, melanoma initiating (stem) cell immune based therapy intended to

eliminate the tumor cells capable of causing disease recurrence. Melapuldencel-T has been approved to enter this trial with a Special Protocol Assessment (“SPA”) from the Food and Drug

Administration (“FDA”) and has received Fast Track designation for metastatic melanoma, as well as Orphan Drug designation. There are approximately 120,000 new cases of melanoma every

year in the U.S.

Pursuant to the terms of the CSC merger agreement, on May 8th NeoStem issued 5.33 million shares of NeoStem common stock, restricted and subject to certain holding periods, in exchange for

all of CSC’s equity interests. CSC shareholders will be eligible for milestone and royalty payments of up to $90 million, which may be payable in cash or shares of NeoStem common stock at

NeoStem's discretion. The shares of NeoStem's common stock issued to equity holders of CSC are not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and may not be offered or sold in

the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from registration requirements and are subject to selling restrictions.

Recent Highlights and Upcoming Milestones

The CSC acquisition has significantly advanced NeoStem’s leadership in the cell therapy industry by adding a Targeted Immunotherapy Program to its diversified product pipeline. The Company

looks forward to additional near term milestones in other clinical development programs:

• Immune Modulation (T Regulatory Cell Program) - Phase 1 data in type 1 diabetes are expected to be presented on June 15th at the American Diabetes Association (“ADA”). meeting.

NeoStem has licensed this technology from Dr. Jeffrey Bluestone of UCSF School of Medicine. NeoStem plans to initiate a Phase 2 study in the third quarter of 2014 using the

proprietary Treg technology to treat type 1 diabetes, which affects more than 34 million people worldwide.



• Ischemic Repair (CD34 Cell Program) - In the second half of 2014 NeoStem expects to release Phase 2 data from its PreSERVE AMI trial of AMR-001, the Company’s second most

advanced product candidate. PreSERVE AMI is a randomized, double-blinded, placebo-controlled Phase 2 clinical trial testing AMR-001, an autologous (donor and recipient are the

same) adult stem cell product for the treatment of patients with left ventricular dysfunction following acute ST segment elevation myocardial infarction (“STEMI”), which affects more

than 160,000 patients per year in the U.S. With the last patient of the 160 patient trial infused in late December 2013, the last patient’s 6 month follow-up is expected to occur in June

2014. Once the primary endpoint 6 month data has been collected, the data set will be locked and analysis will begin with a submission for a possible presentation of the study results at

the American Heart Association's Scientific Sessions to be held November 15-19, 2014. If approved by FDA and/or other worldwide regulatory agencies following successful completion

of further trials, AMR-001 would address a significant medical need for which there is currently no effective treatment, potentially improving longevity and quality of life for those

suffering a STEMI, and positioning NeoStem to capture a meaningful share of this worldwide market. The Company may also advance its CD34 Cell Program into other clinical

indications, such as chronic heart failure, traumatic brain injury and/or critical limb ischemia.

NeoStem continues to expand its intellectual property protection including its Treg international patent portfolio with the granting in the first quarter of a patent in Japan as well as new U.S. and

European patent allowances for AMR-001.

Progenitor Cell Therapy, LLC ("PCT") is NeoStem’s revenue-generating contract manufacturing subsidiary. PCT has two cGMP, state-of-the art cell therapy research, development, and

manufacturing facilities in New Jersey and California, serving the cell therapy community with integrated and regulatory compliant distribution capabilities. The Company is pursuing commercial

expansion of its manufacturing operations both in the U.S. and internationally. Additionally, with the acquisition of CSC, PCT can leverage CSC’s additional manufacturing capacity in Irvine,

California as well as their personnel’s experience and expertise in immunotherapy to provide additional manufacturing and/or development work to advance NeoStem’s platform technology as

well as technologies of PCT’s client base.

Financial Results for the 2014 First Quarter

Revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2014 were $4.1 million compared to $2.5 million for the same period in 2013, representing a 61% increase. PCT's clinical services revenues, the

largest component of revenues, increased 88%. Overall, there were approximately 50% more active clients as of March 31, 2014 compared to March 31, 2013, including five new clinical service

contracts initiated during the first quarter.

For the three months ended March 31, 2014, research and development expenses were $4.8 million compared to $3.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013, an increase of $1.6

million, and a result of support of the advancement of the Treg Program, and to a lesser extent in support of the Phase 2 PreSERVE AMI trial.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased from $5.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2013 to $9.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2014, of which $1.4

million was related to non-cash equity-based compensation. Equity-based compensation is expected to be lower in future quarters. The higher general and administrative expenses were due to

higher strategic and corporate development activities, including those associated with the acquisition of CSC.

Net loss for the first quarter was $13.8 million (or $9.3 million when excluding non-cash charges - see reconciliation in appendix below) compared to $8.9 million in 2013 (or $6.2 million when

excluding non-cash charges - see reconciliation in appendix below).



At March 31, 2014 NeoStem’s cash balance was $41.4 million. Common shares outstanding as of March 31, 2014 were 28.6 million and common shares outstanding as of May 8, 2014, following

the closing of the CSC acquisition, were 33.9 million.

NeoStem continues to pursue the preservation and enhancement of human health globally through the development of cell based therapeutics that prevent, treat or cure disease. The Company has

multiple cell therapy platforms that work to address the pathology of disease using a person’s own cells to amplify the body’s natural repair mechanisms including enhancing the destruction of

cancer initiating cells, repairing and replacing damaged or aged tissue, cells and organs and restoring their normal function. The combination of NeoStem’s therapeutic development business and

a revenue-generating service provider business provides the Company with unique capabilities for cost effective in-house product development and immediate revenue and future cash flow to

help underwrite the Company’s internal development programs.

Appendix

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

The Company uses Net Loss Excluding Non-Cash Charges as a non-GAAP financial measure in evaluating its performance. This measure represents net loss, less equity-based compensation,
depreciation and amortization, and other non-cash adjustments included in net loss. The Company believes that providing this measure to investors provides important supplemental information
of its performance and permits investors and management to evaluate the core operating performance and cash utilization of the Company by excluding the use of these non-cash adjustments.
Additionally, the Company believes this information is frequently used by securities analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of performance. Management uses, and
believes that investors benefit from, this non-GAAP financial measure in assessing the Company's operating results, as well as in planning, forecasting and analyzing future periods.

Net Loss Excluding Non-Cash Charges has limitations as an analytical tool, and investors should not consider this measure in isolation, or as a substitute for analysis of the Company's results as
reported under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States ("U.S. GAAP"). For example, this measure does not reflect the Company's cash expenditures, future requirements for
capital expenditures, contractual commitments, or cash requirements for working capital needs. Although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated or
amortized often will have to be replaced in the future, and Net Loss Excluding Non-Cash Charges does not reflect any cash requirements for such replacements. Given these limitations, the
Company relies primarily on its U.S. GAAP results and uses the Net Loss Excluding Non-Cash Charges measure only as a supplemental measure of its financial performance and cash utilization.

GAAP to Non-GAAP Reconciliation  
  
Net Loss Excluding Non-Cash Charges Reconciliation   
 Three Months Ended
(in millions) March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
   
Net loss $ (13.8) $ (8.9)
   
Equity-based compensation 3.9 2.2
Depreciation and amortization 0.4 0.6
Changes in fair value of derivative liability — —
Changes in acquisition-related contingent consideration 0.2 —
Bad debt recovery — —
Deferred income taxes — —
   
Net Loss Excluding Non-Cash Charges $ (9.3) $ (6.2)
  

Forward-Looking Statements

This press release contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements reflect management's current
expectations, as of the date of this press release, and involve



certain risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements include statements herein with respect to the successful execution of the Company's business strategy, including with respect to the
Company's ability to develop and grow its business, the successful development of cellular therapies, including with respect to the Company's research and development and clinical evaluation
efforts in connection with the Company's Targeted Immunotherapy Program in Oncology, CD34 Cell Program and T Regulatory Cell Program, the future of the regenerative medicine industry
and the role of stem cells and cellular therapy in that industry and the performance and planned expansion of the Company's contract development and manufacturing business. The Company's
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors. Factors that could cause future results to materially differ from the
recent results or those projected in forward-looking statements include the "Risk Factors" described in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 13, 2014 and Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 8, 2014 and in the Company's periodic filings with the SEC. The
Company's further development is highly dependent on future medical and research developments and market acceptance, which is outside its control.
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NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 1 FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS This presentation contains “forward-looking” statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as well as historical information. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements, or industry results, to be materially different from anticipated results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. When used in this presentation, statements that are not statements of current or historical fact may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. Without limiting the foregoing, the words “plan,” “intend,” “may,” “will,” “expect,” “believe,” “could,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” or “continue” or similar expressions or other variations or comparable terminology are intended to identify such forward-looking statements, although some forward-looking statements are expressed differently. We remind readers that forward-looking statements are merely predictions and therefore inherently subject to uncertainties and other factors and involve known and unknown risks that could cause the actual results, performance, levels of activity or our achievements or industry results, to be materially different from any future results, performance levels of activity or our achievements or industry results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such forward looking statements appear in this presentation. Factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from anticipated results expressed or implied by forward-looking statements include, among others: • our ability to obtain sufficient capital or strategic business arrangements to fund our operations and expansion plans, including meeting our financial obligations under various licensing and other
strategic arrangements, the funding of our clinical trials for product candidates in our development programs for our Targeted Immunotherapy Program, our CD34 Cell Program and our T Regulatory Cell Program, and the commercialization of the relevant technology; • our ability to build and maintain the management and human resources infrastructure necessary to support the growth of our business; • our ability to integrate our acquired businesses successfully and grow such acquired businesses as anticipated, including expanding our PCT business internationally; • whether a large global market is established for our cellular-based products and services and our ability to capture a meaningful share of this market; • scientific and medical developments beyond our control; • our ability to obtain and maintain, as applicable, appropriate governmental licenses, accreditations or certifications or comply with healthcare laws and regulations or any other adverse effect or limitations caused by government regulation of our business; • whether any of our current or future patent applications result in issued patents, the scope of those patents and our ability to obtain and maintain other rights to technology required or desirable for the conduct of our business; our ability to commercialize products without infringing the claims of third party patents; • whether any potential strategic benefits of various licensing transactions will be realized and whether any potential benefits from the acquisition of these licensed technologies will be realized; • the results of our development activities, including the results of our planned Melapuldencel-T Phase 3 clinical trial, our PreSERVE Phase 2 clinical trial of AMR-001 and planned clinical trials; • our ability to complete our other planned clinical trials (or initiate other trials) in accordance with our estimated timelines due to delays associated with enrolling patients due to the novelty of the

treatment, the size of the patient population and the need of patients to meet the inclusion criteria of the trial or otherwise; • the other factors discussed in “Risk Factors” in our Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“the SEC”) on March 13, 2014, and elsewhere in the Annual Report on Form 10-K; and • the Company’s acquisition of California Stem Cell, Inc. (“CSC Acquisition”) and the ongoing operations of our NeoStem Oncology, LLC will subject the Company to additional risks. Our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 8, 2014 reporting the closing of the CSC Acquisition contains a discussion of the risk factors related to the CSC Acquisition and our NeoStem Oncology, LLC subsidiary. The factors discussed herein, including those risks described in Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 13, 2014, the "Risk Factors" described in the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on May 8, 2014 and in the Company's other periodic filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) which are available for review at www.sec.gov under “Search for Company Filings” could cause actual results and developments to be materially different from those expressed or implied by such statements. All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by these and other factors. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. Except as required by law, the Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.



 

NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 2 CELL THERAPY Using cells to prevent or treat disease and modulate the immune system Holds the promise to dramatically transform the course of medicine Improve clinical outcomes Reduce overall healthcare costs



 

NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 3 ABOUT NEOSTEM Leader in the emerging cellular therapy industry developing novel proprietary cell therapy products as well as generating revenue through a contract development and manufacturing organization that we believe will benefit from the growth of this industry ■ Integrated entity with platform technologies, a strong pipeline, and a revenue-generating contract development and manufacturing service business ■ Recently expanded pipeline into cancer immunotherapies through acquisition of California Stem Cell, Inc. with Phase 3 candidate ■ Over $41M in cash as of March 31, 2014 ■ Headquarters in New York City ■ GMP-compliant facilities in Allendale, NJ; Mountain View, CA; and Irvine, CA ■ 151 employees as of May 8, 2014



 

NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 4 NEOSTEM HAS AN INTEGRATED BUSINESS MODEL Therapeutic development around a significant IP portfolio and a revenue-generating service business allows for cost effective in- house product development and immediate revenue



 

DEVELOPMENT HIGHLIGHTS: MULTIPLE PLATFORM TECHNOLOGIES NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 5 DEVELOPING A PORTFOLIO OF CELL THERAPY PRODUCTS THAT LEVERAGES THE BODY’S NATURAL ABILITY TO HEAL AND FIGHT DISEASE �  CANCER TREATMENT – TARGETED IMMUNOTHERAPY PROGRAM �  ISCHEMIC REPAIR – CD34 CELL PROGRAM �  IMMUNE MODULATION – T REGULATORY CELL PROGRAM �  TISSUE REGENERATION – VSEL™ TECHNOLOGY AND DERMATOLOGY PROGRAM



 

TARGETED IMMUNOTHERAPY PROGRAM RATIONALE NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 6 �  Cancer initiating (stem) cells isolated from patient tumor provide potent signature antigens to educate and direct the immune system �  Immunotherapy product uniquely targets the patient’s cancer initiating (stem) cells, which are otherwise capable of reconstituting the tumor �  Therapies that fail to target cancer initiating (stem) cells are not likely to prevent recurrence of tumors Cancer initiating (stem) cells* can move through the blood stream to form new metastasis and grow to form new tumors * These cells are defined as invasive migratory cancer initiating cells capable of reconstituting and developing new tumors



 

TARGETED IMMUNOTHERAPY TREATMENT PROCESS NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 7 STEP 1: Creation of the treatment begins with the surgical resection of the patient’s tumor STEP 2: (DAY 0 - WEEK 6) The cancer initiating (stem) cells from the tumor are isolated, expanded, and irradiated to render them inactive STEP 3: (PRIOR TO WEEK 6) Patient undergoes leukapheresis, a standard procedure in which monocytes are extracted from circulating blood STEP 4: (WEEK 6) Monocytes mature into dendritic cells, and are exposed to the irradiated cancer initiating (stem) cells, learning how to identify cancer initiating (stem) cells based on their antigen signature STEP 5: (WEEK 6 - WEEK 8) Mature, reactive dendritic cells are cryopreserved, quality controlled, then shipped to the clinical site STEP 6: When convenient for the clinician, treatment begins (includes eight injections administered over the course of six months)



 

FEATURES OF OUR TARGETED IMMUNOTHERAPY PROGRAM NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 8 OUR IMMUNOTHERAPY OVERCOMES Presents the entire spectrum of patient-specific cancer initiating (stem) cells for the immune system to target Limited antigen targeting Targets the cancer initiating (stem) cells that express antigens associated with mutated cell lineages Tumor mutation/escape Induces or enhances persistent T-cell immunity with activated dendritic cells Weak immune response Uses autologous cancer antigen immune priming Toxicity



 

FIRST TARGET INDICATION: MELANOMA NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 9 BASICS OF MELANOMA �  Most lethal form of skin cancer �  Most often caused by unrepaired DNA damage to skin cells from UV radiation �  120,000 new cases per year in U.S.1 �  Kills an estimated 8,790 in U.S. annually2 SURVIVAL RATE �  Stage IV metastatic melanoma – 15% five-year survival rate with current therapies3 CURRENT MAJOR-MARKET* LANDSCAPE FOR MALIGNANT MELANOMA �  111,520 newly diagnosed patients �  2012 Total: $950 million �  76% of cost is spent on immunotherapies 1. American Cancer Society 2. Skin Cancer Foundation 3. AJCC Cancer Staging 2010 (based on 17 academic centers) All other data from Decision Resources Malignant Melanoma – 2013 Report * U.S., Europe and Japan Brain Lung Bone Liver Distant Metastases Hypodermis Epidermis Dermis { { { Skin Tumors



 

OTHER THERAPEUTICS FOR MELANOMA NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 10 THERAPY 2 YR OVERALL SURVIVAL SIDE EFFECTS ESTIMATED COST Proleukin (Interleukin-2) Prometheus Labs 25%1 Capillary Leak Syndrome Impaired Neutrophil Function Disseminated Infection Sepsis >$100,000 Yervoy (Ipilimumab) (CTLA-4 inhibitor) Bristol Myers – Squibb 28%2 Enterocolitis Hepatitis Dermatitis Neuropathy Endocrinopathy GI Disorders >$100,000 Oral BRAF inhibitors & MEK inhibitors 28%3 Cutaneous Malignancies Hypersensitivity Reactions Tumor Promotion in BRAF wild-type QT Prolongation Hepatotoxicity >$100,000 Chemotherapy 15%4 Anemia Fatigue Risk of Infection Nausea/Diarrhea/Constipation ~$50,000 1. Eton JCO 2002, Atkins JCO 2008 2. Hodi NEJM 2010, Robert NEJM 2010, Wolchok Ann Oncol 2013 3. Estimated 4. Chapman JCO 1999, Middleton JCO 2000, Ranson JCO 2007, Robert NEJM 2011, Chapman NEJM 2011 (Derived from a range of 9 – 20%)



 

PHASE 2 RESULTS FOR MELAPULDENCEL-T NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 11 Dillman, et al. Journal Immunotherapy 2012 31% 0% 20% 40% 60% 80% Control Group (Irradiated Tumor Cells Only) Melapuldencel-T Treatment Group 2 YEAR OVERALL SURVIVAL 72% • No serious adverse events related to immunotherapy • Minor local injection site reactions



 

INTUS PHASE 3 SPECIAL PROTOCOL ASSESSMENT (SPA) STUDY DESIGN NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 12 STUDY NAME TARGET Patients with Stage IV or recurrent Stage III metastatic melanoma LOCATION AND NUMBER OF SUBJECTS United States and Europe, multicenter, 250 patients* DESIGN Double blind, placebo controlled, randomized (2:1) ENDPOINT Overall survival TREATMENT GROUP Melapuldencel-T (autologous dendritic cells pulsed with irradiated tumor cells in GM-CSF) CONTROL GROUP Autologous mononuclear cells (MC) in GM-CSF SPECIAL PROTOCOL ASSESSMENT (SPA) Indicates FDA is in agreement with the design, clinical endpoints and planned clinical analysis of this Phase 3 trial and could serve as the basis for a Biologics License Application * Company may overenroll by 10%



 

CD34 CELL PROGRAM: ENHANCING THE BODY’S NATURAL REPAIR MECHANISM ■ Following a heart attack, apoptosis and progressive cardiomyocyte loss leads to infarct expansion ■ ST segment Elevation MI (STEMI) patients are at a high risk of a progressive deterioration in heart muscle function that leads to worsening of heart function, morbidity and mortality ■ CD34/CXCR4 cells are a natural repair mechanism ■ This mechanism works the same for other areas of vascular insufficiency such as chronic heart failure THE NATURAL PROGRESSION OF DISEASE POST-STEMI NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 13 AMR-001 BRINGS REPAIR SYSTEM TO THE HEART TO PRESERVE FUNCTION AFTER A STEMI



 

PRESERVE PHASE 2 STUDY TREATMENT PROCESS NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 14 DAY 1: Patient comes to emergency room with heart attack and receives stent DAY 4: Cardiac magnetic resonance to assess ventricular function DAY 4-9: Mini bone marrow procedure to harvest cells DAY 5-9: 6-8 hour cell separation process to isolate CD34/CXCR4 cells DAY 6-11: Injection of cell therapy into the infarct-related artery



 

FEATURES AND BENEFITS OF AMR-001 NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 15 ■ CD34/CXCR4 cells home to the viable tissue surrounding the infarcted (dead) myocardium (peri-infarct zone) after administration and persist ■ Autologous cells take up residence in the peri-infarct zone, likely promoting angiogenesis (development and formation of new blood vessels) ■ Cell preparation has a 72 hour shelf life and is infused into patient 5 to 11 days following an acute myocardial infarction (AMI) ► After the pro-inflammatory “hot phase” ► Prior to permanent scar formation ■ Amplifies the body’s natural repair mechanism ■ Cells are not expanded – no risk of genetic mutation ■ Cells are autologous – no immunogenicity risk ■ Delivery where cells are needed without having to inject into myocardium ► Safer and greater distribution FEATURES BENEFITS



 

PHASE 1 RESULTS POINT TO AMR-001 POTENTIAL NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 16 Patients dosed ≥ the threshold dose of 10 million cells showed significant improvement in perfusion Increasing doses of CD34/SDF-1 mobile cells reduced the size of the infarct region as measured by CMR DSMB DETERMINED THAT THERE WERE NO SAFETY CONCERNS THAT WARRANTED ANY ACTION Quyyumi AmHtJ 2011 and data on file Y = Δ Infarct % LV Mass X = Dose of SDF-1 mobile CD34 cells R2 = 0.4971 P = .015 At threshold dose of 10 million cells or more, no individuals showed decrease in LVEF RTSS (HYPOPERFUSION) COHORT BASE LINE 6 MONTHS DELTA % CHANGE Control 259.0 273.5 +14.5 +5.6 5M Cells 714.2 722.0 +7.8 +1.1 10M Cells 998.6 635.8 -362.8 -36.4 15M Cells 584.0 462.0 -122.0 -20.9 % of individuals with decrease in left ventricular ejection fraction (LVEF) CD34 cells (millions) No individuals showed a decrease in LVEF Threshold DOSE RESPONSE CORRELATED WITH MOBILE CD34 CELLS



 

MIGRATORY CAPACITY OF ADMINISTERED CD34 CELLS ASSOCIATED WITH EVENT- FREE SURVIVAL POST AMI NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 17 Assmus, B., et al. (2014) Long-term clinical outcome after intracoronary application of bone marrow-derived mononuclear cells for acute myocardial infarction: migratory capacity of administered cells determines event-free survival. European Heart Journal �  Recently published study demonstrated administration of autologous SDF-1 migratory CD34 cells, significantly reduces cumulative incidence of major adverse clinical cardiac events following acute myocardial infarction (AMI) Event-free survival (%) (cardiac, cardiovascular and unknown death, rehospitalization for heart failure)



 

PRESERVE PHASE 2 STUDY: ENROLLMENT COMPLETED WITH ANTICIPATED DATA RELEASE 2H 2014 NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 18 TARGET Post-AMI patients KEY INCLUSION CRITERIA Confirmation of ST Elevation MI (STEMI); ejection fraction < 48% at day 4; state of the art care post stenting LOCATION AND NUMBER OF SUBJECTS United States, 60 centers, 160 patients (enrollment completed) DESIGN Double blind, placebo controlled, randomized (1:1) PRIMARY ENDPOINT Change in cardiac perfusion (RTSS by SPECT) from baseline to 6 months OTHER ENDPOINTS Secondary endpoints to determine preservation of cardiac function and clinical events: ■ CMR to measure LVEF, LVESV, LVEDV, regional myocardial strain, infarct/peri-infarct regional wall motion abnormalities, and infarct size (baseline and 6 months) ■ Quality of Life measures: (KCCQ & SAQ) ■ Reduction in cumulative MACE and other adverse clinical cardiac events at 6, 12, 18, 24, and 36 months TREATMENT Single dose via infarct related artery with minimum dose for release >10MM CD34+ cells



 

�  Significant need - prevalence of over 23 million worldwide, 5.7 million U.S. �  Therapy would enable larger distribution (not limited to mapping systems) RECENT DATA SUPPORTS CD34 STEM CELL THERAPY IN CHRONIC HEART FAILURE NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 19 Adapted from Vrtovec et al, Circ Res published online 10/12/2012 Note: 110 patients (open label, 55 treated with cells and 55 standard of care) CD34 STEM CELL THERAPY SIGNIFICANTLY IMPROVES EVENT-FREE SURVIVIAL AT 5 YEARS IN PATIENTS WITH DILATED CARDIOMYOPATHY



 

T REGULATORY CELL PROGRAM: POTENTIAL TO LIMIT AUTOIMMUNITY NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 20 TREG THERAPY REPRESENTS A NOVEL APPROACH FOR RESTORING IMMUNE BALANCE BY ENHANCING T REGULATORY CELL NUMBER AND FUNCTION1 1. Chai, Jian-Guo et al, Journal of Immunology 2008; 180;858-869



 

FEATURES OF OUR TREG PROGRAM NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 21 FEATURES OF TREGS: ■ Natural part of immune system ■ Regulate activity of T effector cells (responsible for protection from viruses and foreign antigens) ■ In autoimmune disease it is thought that deficient Treg activity permits the T effector cells to attack the body’s own tissues SIGNIFICANT COLLABORATIONS: ■ Partnership with Becton Dickinson (11.5% program ownership) ■ Accelerated development through collaboration with University of California, San Francisco and laboratory of Dr. Jeffrey Bluestone



 

DIABETES MELLITUS TYPE-1 (T1D) NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 22 �  Diabetes is leading cause of kidney failure, new cases of adult blindness, and non-traumatic lower-limb amputations �  Results in total insulin deficiency �  At time of diagnosis, there are still insulin-secreting beta cells in islets �  Also called insulin dependent diabetes or juvenile diabetes �  Affects >34 million worldwide, 1 in 300 children and more adults �  Autoimmune destruction of insulin- producing (beta cells) of the pancreas Islet at diagnosis of T1D Insulin-secreting cells Glucagon-secreting cells Healthy islet Insulin-secreting cells Glucagon-secreting cells



 

ECONOMIC IMPACT OF T1D NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 23 THE ECONOMIC BURDEN OF T1D IN THE U.S. IS ESTIMATED AT $14.9 BILLION1 �  Average economic burden per person with diabetes is larger for T1D vs T2D PREVENTION IS KEY - MEDICAL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH T1D INCREASE SUBSTANTIALLY WITH AGE AND DURATION OF DISEASE �  Annual medical costs per person increase with age at a much faster rate for those with T1D vs T2D �  For T1D the average medical cost per case increases from ~$4,000 for people younger than age 44 to ~$35,000 for the population age 65 and older �  Increased utilization of institutional care in elderly T1D patients 1. Dall TM et al. Population Health Management 2009;12:103–110 $2 BILLION ESTIMATED MARKET SIZE FOR INSULIN SALES IN 2017 �  For the T1D indication alone UNMET NEED FOR ß-CELL PRESERVING/PREVENTATIVE TREATMENTS FOR T1D



 

NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 24 TREG IMMUNOTHERAPY WORKS IN MODEL OF T1D Tregs effectively suppress diabetes 0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 0 5 10 15 20 Weeks after treatment R emi s s io n ( % ) untreated Ag-specific Treg therapy Ag-specific Tregs reverse diabetes Tang, Bluestone, et al.



 

T1D TREG TREATMENT PROCESS NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 25 DAY 1: Screening and enrollment DAY 5-7: Blood draw from patient DAY 7-21: Manufacturing including expansion DAY 21: Infusion of Treg therapy to patient



 

NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 26 ADMINISTRATION OF CD4+CD25highCD127- REGULATORY T CELLS PRESERVES BETA CELL FUNCTION IN T1D IN CHILDREN* Not Treated Time 0 Not Treated 4 mo 0 2 wk 2 mo 4 mo �  First human evidence of therapeutic effect of autologous Treg therapy protection of pancreatic function in new onset T1D in children �  C-peptide levels stabilized �  Reduction of insulin requirements �  20% of patients able to come off of exogenous insulin four months after treatment �  One year follow-up: evidence that Treg therapy preserves function of pancreatic islets cells * Children aged 8-16 in study Marek-Trzonkowska N et al. Diabetes Care 2012;35:1817-1820 Marek-Trzonkowska N et al. Clinical Immunology 2014 Treated



 

MARKET OPPORTUNITY IN ASTHMA NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 27 ASTHMA ■ Affects 25 million in U.S. and 300 million worldwide ■ Asthma accounts for $56 billion in annual direct and indirect health care costs in U.S. ■ Steroid resistant asthma afflicts less than 5% of the total asthma population, but accounts for up to 50% of healthcare spending on asthma ■ Initiating proof-of-concept study planned to initiate in 2014



 

TISSUE REGENERATION PROGRAMS NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 28 VSEL™ TECHNOLOGY: POTENTIAL TO REPAIR DAMAGED TISSUE ■ Evaluating therapeutic potential of very small embryonic- like stem cells (VSELs™) ■ Research suggests multipotency and multi-lineage differentiation into all basic cell types (mesoderm, ectoderm, endoderm) ■ Exploring the development for retinal repair and the treatment of chronic wounds ■ $4.5 million of grants toward preclinical VSEL™ research DERMATOLOGY PROGRAM: TOPICAL PRODUCT BASED ON STEM CELL DERIVED GROWTH FACTORS ■ Exploring potential for fine lines and wrinkles, psoriasis, and wound care BONE mesoderm NEURON ectoderm PANCREAS endoderm VSELs™



 

NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 29 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY TARGETED IMMUNOTHERAPY PROGRAM (CANCER TREATMENT) ■ 13 pending patents with coverage including: ► Individualized high purity carcinoma initiating (stem) cells for target indications, methods and use of same; and rapid methods to produce high purity cancer initiating (stem) cells CD34 CELL PROGRAM (ISCHEMIC REPAIR) ■ Broad and growing patent portfolio supports cardiac conditions and a broad range of other conditions caused by underlying ischemia ■ Six granted or allowed U.S. and 10 OUS composition of matter and methods patents ■ Patent Applications: 20 U.S. and OUS patents pending T REGULATORY CELL PROGRAM (IMMUNE MODULATION) ■ Exclusive rights to 23 issued patents covering isolation, activation, expansion and methods of treating or preventing certain conditions and/or diseases using Tregs in U.S. and major international markets ■ Includes composition of matter patents and method patents VSEL™ TECHNOLOGY (TISSUE REGENERATION) ■ In-licensed from the University of Louisville the world-wide patent rights and know-how regarding the isolation, purification and therapeutic use of very small embryonic-like (VSEL™) stem cells



 

2014 OUTLOOK: CLINICAL MILESTONES NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 30 1. The last patient primary endpoint follow-up for this study is expected in June followed by data lock and analysis with data available in 2H 2014. 2. It is expected that this study by Dr. Jeffrey Bluestone (University of California, San Francisco), the Study Director, and Dr. Kevan Herold (Yale University), the Study Principal Investigator, will be presented at the American Diabetes Association’s Scientific Sessions, to be held June 13 – 17, 2014. The data from the study has been licensed by the Company from the University of California, San Francisco, and is expected to serve as the basis for initiation of a Phase 2 study by the Company. Note: The Company’s recent acquisition of a Targeted Immunotherapy Program, now its most advanced program, could result in a reprioritization of the timing of the initiation of certain of its other earlier stage clinical trials.



 

MOUNTAIN VIEW, CALIFORNIA (25,000 ft2) ISO Class 7 / Class 10,000 suites Recent expansion of clean room space ALLENDALE, NEW JERSEY (30,000 ft2) ISO Class 7 / Class 10,000 suites ISO Class 6 / Class 1,000 suite Recent expansion of clean room space PCT PROVIDES OUTSOURCED MANUFACTURING CAPABILITIES TO CELL THERAPY INDUSTRY NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 31 ■ High quality manufacturing capabilities with 15-year track record of success ■ Proven efficiencies and reduced capital investment for customers through outsourcing ■ Demonstrated regulatory expertise: ► 50+ EU and U.S. regulatory filings; ► All clinical trial phases including BLA submission and product approval by FDA ■ Significant focus on innovation, engineering and automation ■ EU product distribution requirement compliant ■ Continuing to expand commercial capabilities in the U.S. and internationally IRVINE, CALIFORNIA (12,500 ft2) ISO Class 7 / Class 10,000 suites



 

CONTRACT MANUFACTURING IS A SIGNIFICANT OPPORTUNITY NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 32 EXAMPLES OF CONTRACT SERVICES POTENTIAL FROM CONCEPTION TO COMMERCIALIZATION* *Based on industry experience and estimated potential future commercial manufacturing in the industry LOW COMPLEXITY PRODUCT MEDIUM COMPLEXITY PRODUCT HIGH COMPLEXITY PRODUCT PRECLINICAL DRUG DISCOVERY CONTRACT 12 to 18 Month Engagement 12 to 24 Month Engagement 24 to 36 Month Engagement $50,000 to $250,000 $250,000 to $500,000 $500,000 to $1,000,000 PHASE 1 CLINICAL TRIAL MANUFACTURING CONTRACT 6 to 12 Month Eng. 12 to 18 Month Eng. 12 to 24 Month Eng. 5 to 25 Units Produced 25 to 50 Units Produced 50 to 100 Units Produced $250,000 to $750,000 $625,000 to $1,250,000 $1,000,000 to $2,000,000 PHASE 2 CLINICAL TRIAL MANUFACTURING CONTRACT 12 to 18 Month Eng. 12 to 24 Month Eng. 18 to 36 Month Eng. 25 to 50 Units Produced 100 to 200 Units Produced 200 to 400 Units Produced $625,000 to $1,250,000 $2,000,000 to $4,000,000 $3,000,000 to $6,000,000 PHASE 3 CLINICAL TRIAL MANUFACTURING CONTRACT 12 to 18 Month Eng. 24 to 48 Month Eng. 24 to 48 Month Eng. 50 to 100 Units Produced 200 to 400 Units Produced 400 to 1,000 Units Produced $1,000,000 to $2,000,000 $3,000,000 to $6,000,000 $4,000,000 to $10,000,000 COMMERCIAL MANUFACTURING CONTRACT Est. Peak Annual Sales Est. Peak Annual Sales Est. Peak Annual Sales 2,500 to 5,000 Units 10,000 to 25,000 Units 25,000 to 50,000 Units $38M to $75M / Yr. $80M to $200M / Yr. $125 to $250M / Yr.



 

Robert Dickey IV, MBA – Chief Financial Officer �  15+ years management experience at life science companies, including cell therapy experience as CFO of StemCyte, following a career as an investment banker at Lehman Brothers Andrew L. Pecora, MD – Chief Visionary Officer �  Chief Innovations Officer at John Theurer Cancer Center at Hackensack University Medical Center; Co-founder of PCT; Significant experience in design and conduct of clinical trials Douglas W. Losordo, MD – Chief Medical Officer �  Leader in cell therapy research and renowned cardiologist; Obtained over $35 million in NIH funding during career-long efforts to develop novel therapeutics Robert A. Preti, PhD – Chief Scientific Officer, President of PCT �  Leading authority on cell engineering; Co-founder of PCT; 10 years prior experience as Director of Hematopoietic Stem Cell Processing & Research Laboratory Stephen W. Potter, MBA – Executive Vice President �  Biotech and pharma experience: Osiris Therapeutics (approval of Prochymal®, first-ever stem cell drug therapy), Genzyme, DuPont Pharmaceuticals, Booz Allen & Hamilton Robin Smith, MD, MBA – Chief Executive Officer �  Leading NeoStem since 2006, completed six acquisitions and one divestiture; Raised over $180 million; Extensive experience in executive and board level capacities for medical enterprises and healthcare-based entities MANAGEMENT HIGHLIGHTS NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 33 David Altarac, MD, MPA – VP, Regulatory Affairs �  Extensive experience in U.S. and global regulatory affairs, including strategy, operations, labeling and departmental leadership; 13 year tenure at Merck Jonathan Sackner-Bernstein, MD – VP, Clinical Development & New Technologies �  Formerly FDA Assoc. Center Director for Innovation and Technology; At FDA launched innovation initiative; Established inter-agency relationship between
FDA and DARPA Adel Nada, MD – VP, Immunotherapy �  Formerly Senior Medical Director, Cardiovascular Cell Therapies at Baxter Healthcare; Led Clinical Pharmacology Medical Dept. at Abbott Laboratories Hans Keirstead, PhD – President, NeoStem Oncology �  15+ years of experience; CEO of California Stem Cell prior to acquisition; Founder of Stem Cell Research Center, University of California at Irvine; Previously Professor, UCI; Previously CEO of Ability Biomedical Robert Dillman, MD – VP, Oncology �  CMO of California Stem Cell prior to acquisition; Executive Medical Director of the Hoag Hospital Institute for Research and Education and Clinical Professor of Medicine at UC Irvine Catherine M. Vaczy, Esq. – General Counsel �  Senior business executive and counsel with 20+ years of leadership experience in the biotech industry; Former senior executive at ImClone Systems ($1 billion co-development deal in oncology forged with Bristol-Myers Squibb)



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS Robin Smith, MD, MBA Chairman of the Board �  MD – Yale; MBA – The Wharton School �  Formerly President & CEO IP2M, EVP & CMO HealthHelp �  Experience - Trustee of NYU Medical Center; Chairman of the Board of NYU Hospital for Joint Diseases (through November 2009) and Chairman of Stem for Life Foundation Richard Berman Independent Director �  BS and MBA – NYU; JD – Boston College �  Over 35 years of venture capital, management, M&A experience �  Experience – Current Board of Directors of Apricus Biosciences, Easylink Services International, Inc., Advaxis, Inc., Broadcaster, Inc., National Investment Managers Drew Bernstein, CPA Independent Director �  BS – University of Maryland Business School �  Licensed in State of New York; member AICPA, NYSSCPA and NSA �  Experience – Bernstein & Pinchuk LLP (member of BDO Seidman Alliance); PRC auditing; 200+ real estate transactions with $3B+ aggregate value; accountant and business advisor Martyn Greenacre, MBA Independent Director �  BA – Harvard College; MBA – Harvard Business School �  Experience – Board and executive positions for multiple biopharmaceutical companies; Former CEO of Delsys Pharmaceutical Corporation and Zynaxis Inc; Chairman of the Board of BMP Sunstone Corporation Steven Myers Independent Lead Director �  BS Mathematics – Stanford University �  Experience – Founder/Chairman/CEO SM&A (competition management services); career in aerospace and defense sectors supporting DoD & NASA programs Andrew Pecora, MD, FACP Director �  MD — University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey �  Experience – Chief Innovations Officer, Professor and Vice President of Cancer Services at John Theurer Cancer Center at Hackensack University Medical Center, and Managing Partner of the Northern New Jersey Cancer Center
Eric Wei Director �  BS – Mathematics & Economics – Amherst College; MBA – The Wharton School �  Experience – Founder/Managing Partner of RimAsia Capital partners (private equity); Formerly with Peregrine Capital, Prudential Securities, Lazard Freres, Citibank, Gilbert Global Equity Partners, and Crimson Asia Capital Partners NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 34



 

KEY METRICS NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 35 MARKET METRICS MARKET CAPITALIZATION1 $203M STOCK PRICE2 $5.98 52 WEEK RANGE2 $5.00 - $9.89 FLOAT1 29.8M INSIDER HOLDINGS1 11.9% FINANCIAL METRICS REVENUE3 $4.1M (First Quarter) CASH4 $41.4M COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING1 33.9M WARRANTS1 4.0M (avg. warrant exercise price of $14.22) OPTIONS1 4.3M (avg. option exercise price of $9.77) 1. As of May 8, 2014 (Market capitalization based on a $5.98 share price) 2. As of May 6, 2014 3. For the three months ended March 31, 2014 4. As of March 31, 2014



 

UNIQUE BUSINESS MODEL NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 36 COMBINATION OF A LATE STAGE CLINICAL PIPELINE AND A REVENUE-GENERATING SERVICE BUSINESS CANCER TREATMENT – TARGETED IMMUNOTHERAPY PROGRAM ■ Stage IV and recurrent Stage III melanoma – Intus Phase 3 study approved, initiating 2H 2014 ISCHEMIC REPAIR – CD34 CELL PROGRAM ■ Acute myocardial infarction – PreSERVE Phase 2 study (data available 2H 2014) ■ Chronic heart failure – Preparing for Phase 2 study in Europe IMMUNE MODULATION – T REGULATORY CELL PROGRAM ■ Type 1 diabetes – Preparing for Phase 2 study, Phase 1 data readout to be presented at ADA June 2014 ■ Steroid resistant asthma – Preparing for Phase 1 study in Canada TISSUE REGENERATION ■ VSEL™ Technology - Macular degeneration, wound healing, bone regeneration – preclinical ■ Human stem cell derived growth factors for dermatologic applications – Skin health, psoriasis, wound care CELL THERAPY MANUFACTURING – PROGENITOR CELL THERAPY ■ Cost effective in-house product development and immediate revenue and cash flow generation ■ Manufacturing, regulatory, and commercialization expertise for therapeutics development ■ Cell therapy automation to lower cost and improve efficiency ■ Manufacturing expansion in U.S. and internationally



 

CONTACT INFORMATION NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 37 NEOSTEM, INC. NASDAQ: NBS WWW.NEOSTEM.COM ROBIN SMITH, MD, MBA CHAIRMAN & CEO PHONE: (212) 584-4174 EMAIL: RSMITH@NEOSTEM.COM
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SINCE 2006, ACCESSED OVER $189M AND COMPLETED MULTIPLE M&A TRANSACTIONS AND ONE DIVESTITURE NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 39



 

AMORCYTE SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY BOARD Andrew L. Pecora, MD, FACP, CPE SAB Administrative Chairman Hackensack University Medical Center Chief Scientific Officer, Amorcyte Eugene Braunwald, MD, FRCP Brigham & Women’s Hospital Bernard J. Gersh, MD, ChB, DPhil, FRCP The Mayo Clinic Dean J. Kereiakes, MD, FACC The Christ Hospital Heart of Greater Cincinnati Douglas L. Mann, MD, FACC Washington University School of Medicine Emerson C. Perin, MD, PhD, FACC Texas Heart Institute Bertram Pitt, MD University of Michigan School of Medicine Arshed Quyyumi, MD, FRCP, FACC, Emory University School of Medicine Edmund K. Waller, MD, PhD, FACP Emory University School of Medicine James T. Willerson, MD Texas Heart Institute Joseph Wu, MD, PhD Stanford University School of Medicine NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 40



 

ATHELOS SCIENTIFIC ADVISORY BOARD NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 41 Robert A. Preti, PhD SAB Administrative Chairman Chief Scientific Officer of NeoStem and PCT, President of PCT Jeffrey Bluestone, PhD University of California, San Francisco, Diabetes Center David A. Horwitz, MD University of Southern California Robert Korngold, PhD Hackensack University Medical Center Robert S. Negrin, MD Stanford University David Peritt, PhD Hospira Noel L. Warner, PhD BD Biosciences



 

VSEL™ TECHNOLOGY ACADEMIC COLLABORATORS NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 42 Mariusz Ratajczak, MD, PhD, Dsci University of Louisville Russell Taichman, DMD, DMSc University of Michigan Vincent Falanga, MD Boston University Michael Young, PhD Schepens Eye Research Institute, Harvard Medical School Kameran Lashkari, MD Schepens Eye Research Institute, Harvard Medical School Song Li, PhD University of California, Berkeley



 

T1D IS ON THE RISE NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 43 NEW CASES OF T1D (0-14 YEARS) PER 100,000 CHILDREN, 2013: CONCENTRATION IN DEVELOPED MARKETS Dabelea, Lancet, 2009



 

HUMAN VSELS™ ACCELERATE HEALING IN A SCID MOUSE COMPLEX TAIL WOUND MODEL NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 44 PRELIMINARY DATA IN A PRECLINICAL MODEL OF SEVERE COMPLEX WOUNDS SUGGEST THAT VSELS™ MAY BE MORE EFFECTIVE IN ACCELERATING HEALING THAN MESENCHYMAL STROMAL CELLS (MSCs) FIBRIN CONTROL (DAY 7) FIBRIN CONTROL (DAY 14) 2500 VSELs (DAY 7) 2500 VSELs (DAY 14) A B C D VSELs vs. MSCs P<0.05 % Re-epithelialization Days Post Treatment 2,500 human VSELs Fibrin Control 500,000 human MSCs



 

VSELS™ COULD BE USED TO TREAT MACULAR DEGENERATION NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 45 Eminli, S. et al. Exploring the use of human very small embryonic-like stem cells (VSELs) isolated from adult peripheral blood for therapy of dry age-related macular degeneration (AMD). ISSCR 2012 Annual Meeting, Yokohama, Japan. Poster presentation. PKH-26 / RECOVERIN PKH-26 positive cells co-labeled with Recoverin (400x). PKH-26 / RHODOPSIN PKH-26 positive cells co-labeled with Rhodopsin (400x). Arrows indicate PKH-26-labeled cells that stain for human recoverin Arrows indicate PKH-26-labeled cells that stain for human rhodopsin PRELIMINARY DATA SUGGEST HUMAN VSELS™ INJECTED INTO A MOUSE SUB-RETINAL SPACE INTEGRATE AND SHOW DIFFERENTIATION POTENTIAL IN SITU



 

NEOSTEM ONCOLOGY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 46 �  EIGHT ISSUED PATENTS WITH COVERAGE INCLUDING: �  Cardiomyocytes and methods of producing and purifying cardiomyocytes �  Stem cell growth medium and methods of making and using same �  Human late stage motor neuron progenitor cells and methods of making and using same �  Methods of derivation of neuronal progenitor cells from embryonic stem cells �  28 PATENTS PENDING WITH COVERAGE INCLUDING: �  Individualized high purity carcinoma initiating (stem) cells for target indications, methods and use of same �  Antigen-presenting cancer vaccines �  Rapid methods to produce high purity cancer initiating (stem) cells �  Neuronal cell purification for transplantation �  Method of purification of a cell population for vascular mimicry and use of same �  Storage bags for shipment of cancer products �  Bioreactor for closed system production of cancer products



 

CD34 CELL PROGRAM INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY NASDAQ:NBS | www.neostem.com > 47 ■ Broad and growing patent portfolio supports cardiac and other ischemic conditions ■ NeoStem’s patent claims cover a pharmaceutical composition that contains a therapeutic concentration of non-expanded CD34/CXCR4 stem cells that move in response to SDF-1, together with a stabilizing amount of serum, and that can be delivered parenterally through a catheter to repair an injury caused by vascular insufficiency ■ Six granted or allowed U.S. composition of matter and methods patents ■ 10 granted or allowed OUS composition of matter and method patents: ► European Union, Japan, South Africa, Malaysia, Philippines, Canada, Russia ■ Patent Applications: 20 U.S. and OUS patents pending ■ Issued and pending claims can be applied to broad range of other conditions caused by underlying ischemia, including: chronic myocardial ischemia post-AMI; chronic heart failure; critical limb ischemia; and ischemic brain injury .



 


